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The Sagarmatha Arogya Health Insurance is a complete
health insurance package which covers the financial risk
against unfortunate mishaps of accidents, hospitalization and
critical illness.

Bundled coverage of health insurance package
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INSURANCE COMPANY LTD,
A JOINT VENTURE WITH CEYLINGE INSURANCE PLC, SRI LANKA

AGRICULTURE
INSURANCE

Agriculture Insurance provides insurance coverage on various
agricultural risks like livestock, poultry, paddy, vegetables,
etc. This includes damages arising from fire, natural
disasters, diseases, weather condition, etc.

Making agricultural risks financially safe
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MOTOR
INSURANCE

Motor Insurance policy covers the financial risk on vehicles
against any damages or losses caused by accidents including
personal accidents to driver and passengers and legal
liability to third party for bodily injury and property
damage.

‘Ensure your Motor Sa fe ty
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SAGARMATHA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of Sagarmatha Insurance Company Limited (hereafter referred as “SIC” or “Company”),
which comprise of the Statement of Financial Position as at 315! Ashad 2078 (15" July 2021) and the Statement of Profit or Loss,
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and
Notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of Significant Accounting Policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying Financial Statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the SIC as at
315t Ashad 2078 (15" July 2021), its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standard on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our audit report. We are independent in
accordance with the ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements.
These matters were addressed in the context of the audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report:

S.N. Description of Key Audit Matters How the matters were addressed in our Audit
1. Revenue Recognition (Premium Income): Our audit approach included:
Premium income comprises major part of Revenue 1. Obtaining clear understanding of the process of issuing the policies
which is recorded on issue of the policy as prescribed as per directives issued by the Insurance Board and understanding
by the directives of Insurance Board. Unearned premium the process of recording such income.

Income as estimated by actuarial valuation report has

been accounted in books of account. 2. Verified unearned premium income as provided by actuarial valuation

report.

3. Verification of the documentation requirement as per the directives
issued by Insurance Board related to AML/CFT, individual policy
directives.

Our Results: We considered the premium income recognition to be
acceptable.

2. |Claim Payment and Provisioning: Our audit approach included:
Insurance claim is the major area of expense forthe | 1 Optaining clear understanding of the process / guidelines as per
Insurance companies. directives issued by the Insurance Board for processing claim as

well internal guidelines for claim processing.
Claim provision maintained / Gross contract liability g P 9

Include Claims Incurred but Not (Enough) Reported
IBN(E)R (incurred but not reported), Unearned Premium
and outstanding claim as required by NFRS 4 Insurance
Contract.

2. Verifying the claim paid and provision on sample basis with proof
for payment, documentation as well surveyor report and understanding
the process of accounting.

inéd (gluding IBN(E)R,

\

3. Verifying the claim provisioning faint
by’actuarial report,
. Kathmandu ) |
Our Results: We considered the claipi payment madgga”v}d provisioning
to be acceptable. \%@‘ -

The provision and payment of claims was considered ' '
to be one of the areas requiring significant auditor unearned premium as provid
attention and one of the matters of most significance
in financial statement.
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S.N. Description of Key Audit Matters How the matters were addressed in our Audit

3. | Valuation of Investments at amortized cost and | Our audit approach included:
measured at fair value through OCI 1. Review of investments of SIC and its valuation in accordance with

. . . related NFRS.
Investment of the SIC comprises of investment in

quoted/unquoted equity instruments and fixed deposits. | 2. Verification of investment requirement to be maintained by insurance
Investment Directive, 2075 issued by Insurance Board company as per Investment Directive, 2075.

i the limit for i t tb -lif
prescribes the limit for investment by non-life 3. Assessment of the business model adopted by the management and

companies. the nature of expected cash flow of the investments on the basis of
Valuation of the aforesaid securities has been done available evidences/circumstances and ensured that classification
in accordance with NAS 39. The investment in the of investment commensurate with nature of cash flows and
government bonds, fixed deposit is recognized at management intention of holding the investments.

Amortized cost whereas investments in equity
instruments quoted and unquoted, other than those
held for trading, is valued at Fair Value through
Comprehensive Income on the reporting date. | 5. For investments valued through Other Comprehensive Income, we
reviewed the fair value considering the closing price in Nepal Stock
Exchange as on the reporting date.

4. For the valuation of investments at amortized cost, we reviewed the
Accrued Interest yet to be collected.

The classification of the investments is based on
business model adopted by the management, nature
of cash flows, complexity of calculations and | Our Results: We considered the valuation of investments at amortized

significance of amount involved in such investments. | cost and measured at fair value to be acceptable
Thus, we have considered it as a Key Audit Matter in

our audit.

4. |Information Technology (IT) Controls Our audit approach included:
IT controls include recording of transactions, generating | 1. Understanding the Core Business Software and other allied systems
reports as required for reporting requirement by used by SIC for accounting and reporting purposes.

Insurance Board. Hence, the SIC's financial and
reporting processes are highly dependent on the
effective working of Core Business Software.

2. Understanding the process of feeding data in the system and
conducting a walkthrough of the extraction of the financial information
and statements from the IT systems existing in SIC.

We have considered this as a key audit matter as any

control lapses, validation failures, incorrect input data

and wrong extraction of data may result in incorrect

reporting to the management, shareholders, regulators | 4

and other stakeholders.

3. Checking of the user requirements for any changes in the regulations/
policy of SIC.

. Reviewing the reports generated by the system on sample basis.

Our Results: We considered the controls in the information technology
to be acceptable.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

SIC's management is responsible for the presentation of the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Company's Annual Report, including Report of Board of Directors/Chairman's Statement but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. We have not received the Annual Report prior to the date of this Auditor's Report but is
expected to be received for review after the date of this Auditor's Report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report and if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate
the matter with those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these Financial Statements in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standard (NFRS), and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the
Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the insurance ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the SIC's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are fige mate i,‘l,wrr!li‘s‘statement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonablg a: urance 'is & thghﬂl/ével of
assurance, but it is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a\fﬁa;téqal—m@sta‘t\ekﬁ%ht when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggreg\atéj\‘iﬁe\i'n\éﬁld reasonably
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be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

a) ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of the internal control.

b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the SIC's internal control.

c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the SIC's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

f)  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within SIC to
express an opinion on the Financial Statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with the relevant ethical requirement regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationship and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
To the best of our knowledge and according to explanations given to us and from our examination of the books of account of SIC,
necessary for the purpose of our audit to the extent for the scope of our audit:

a. We have obtained all the information and explanations along with replies to our queries, which to the best of our knowledge and
understanding, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

b. In our opinion, the financial statements comprising of Statements of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash flows, prepared in accordance with the requirements
of Company Act, 2063 and format prescribed by Insurance Board are in agreements with the books of Accounts.

In our opinion, books of accounts, records, books and ledgers have been maintained accurately in accordance with prevailing laws.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us and as so far appeared from the examination of
the books of accounts, we have not come across cases where board of directors or any official has committed any act contrary
to the prevailing laws or committed any irregularity or caused any loss or damage to the company and/or violated directives of
Insurance Board or acted in a manner to jeopardize the interest and security of the company, its clients and investors.

e. We have not come across any fraudulence in the accounts, so far as it appeared from our examination of the books of accounts.

f.  To the best of our knowledge, Company has maintained Insurance Fund, and other required reserves in line with directives issued
by Insurance Board.

g. We did not obtain any information indicating engagement of the company in activities other than insurance business as
approved/licensed by the Insurance Board.

h. We did not obtain any Information indicating company's activities which is prejudicial to the interest of the insured.
i.  The company has acted as per directives of Insurance Board.
j- We did not obtain any information indicating issuance of insurance policy other than as approved by Insurance Board.

k. It appears that all the financial and other information/subject matters which is required to be informed to the shareholders as per
prevalent laws has been provided to the shareholders.

I. To the best of our knowledge, the company is eligible and capable to bear its long-term liabilities from the assets of the company.
m. The internal control system implemented by the company is found to be effective. Q
[%

- * ( _Kathma *)

Raju Kurhg ibako “Fga
Partner \%mwodw >
JBRH & Co
Chartered Accountants

Date: 6! April 2022 UDIN: 220407CA00112VbWI14

Place: Kathmandu
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Sagarmatha Insurance Company Ltd.

Statement of Financial Position
As at Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Fig. in NPR
Notes Current Year Previous Year
Assets
Intangible Assets 4 - -
Property, Plant and Equipment 5 69,463,780 75,544,712
Investment Properties 6 114,667,871 115,439,584
Deferred Tax Assets 7 91,644,776 92,643,339
Investment in Subsidiaries 8 - -
Investment in Associates 9 - -
Investments 10 2,971,051,312 2,588,723,577
Loans 1" - -
Reinsurance Assets 12 1,848,841,499 895,417,377
Current Tax Assets (Net) 21 53,808,949 31,166,226
Insurance Receivables 13 486,976,770 420,615,129
Other Assets 14 168,195,344 149,380,855
Other Financial Assets 15 154,634,695 72,292,913
Cash and Cash Equivalents 16 490,056,970 616,093,464
Total Assets 6,449,341,966 5,057,317,176
Equity & Liabilities
Equity
Share Capital 17 (a) 1,111,357,500 1,001,222,900
Share Application Money Pending Allotment 17 (b) - -
Share Premium 17(c) - -
Insurance Fund 17(d) 1,038,914,685 819,414,355
Catastrophe Reserves 17(e) 99,252,228 114,474,073
Retained Earnings 17(f) 240,942,415 116,875,213
Other Equity 17(9) 133,675,730 125,855,220
Total Equity 2,624,142,558 2,177,841,761
Liabilities
Provisions 18 137,105,125 124,601,322
Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities 19 3,132,942,392 1,983,408,009
Deferred Tax Liabilities 7 - -
Insurance Payables 20 201,403,727 413,719,633
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 21 - -
Borrowings 22 - -
Other Financial Liabilities 23 129,364,586 130,702,865
Other Liabilities 24 224,383,578 227,043,586
Total Liabilities 3,825,199,408 2,879,475,415
Total Equity and Liabilities 6,449,341,966 5,057,317,176
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
As per our Report of even date
R. K. Manandhar Ajith R. Gunawardena Lokmanya Golchha Siddharth Mani Rajbhandari Raju Kumar Sibakoti, FCA
Chairman Director Director Director Partner
For: JBRH & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Rajendraman Serchan  Gajendra Lal Shrestha Shobha Shrestha Chunky Chhetry Sudhir Tamot
Director Director Independent Director Chief Executive Officer Head of Finance

February 24, 2022
Kathmandu
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Sagarmatha Insurance Company Ltd.

Statement of Profit or Loss
For the Year ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)
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Fig. in NPR
Notes Current Year Previous Year
Income
Gross Earned Premiums 25 2,485,803,028 2,276,694,922
Premiums Ceded 26 (1,481,138,375) (1,295,649,804)
Net Earned Premiums 27 1,004,664,653 981,045,118
Commission Income 28 395,771,300 375,459,945
Investment Income 29 209,377,812 230,923,153
Net Gains/ (Losses) on Fair Value Changes 30 - -
Net Realised Gains/ (Losses) 31 - -
Other Income 32 219,221,979 10,371,204
Total Income 1,829,035,743 1,597,799,420
Expenses:
Gross Claims Paid 33 1,334,951,041 1,046,336,278
Claims Ceded 34 (681,466,648) (550,314,817)
Gross Change in Contract Liabilities 35(a) 1,019,194,830 103,253,626
Change in Reinsurance Assets 35(b) (941,007,865) 45,340,408
Net Claims Paid 731,671,357 644,615,495
Commission Expenses 36 48,222,514 47,705,158
Service Fees 37 11,225,880 9,871,765
Employee Benefits Expenses 38 265,302,092 242,054,522
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 39 14,987,246 17,205,668
Impairment Losses 40 18,799,542 -
Other Expenses 41 106,396,937 93,215,910
Finance Cost 42 - -
Total Expenses 1,196,605,568 1,054,668,518
Net Profit/(Loss) For The Year Before Share of Net Profits of
Associates Accounted for Using Equity Method and Tax 632,430,175 543,130,902
Share of Net Profit of Associates accounted using Equity Method 9
Profit Before Tax 632,430,175 543,130,902
Income Tax Expense 43 185,004,467 159,064,943
Net Profit/ (Loss) For The Year 447,425,708 384,065,959
Earning Per Share 50
Basic EPS 40.26 34.56
Diluted EPS 40.26 34.56

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

As per our Report of even date

R. K. Manandhar Ajith R. Gunawardena Lokmanya Golchha Siddharth Mani Rajbhandari Raju Kumar Sibakoti, FCA

Chairman Director Director Director Partner
For: JBRH & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Rajendraman Serchan  Gajendra Lal Shrestha Shobha Shrestha Chunky Chhetry Sudhir Tamot
Director Director Independent Director Chief Executive Officer Head of Finance

February 24, 2022
Kathmandu
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Sagarmatha Insurance Company Ltd.

Statement of other Comprehensive Income
For the Year ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Net Profit/ (Loss) For The Year

Other Comprehensive Income

a) Items that are or may be Reclassified to Profit or Loss
Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI Debt Instruments
Cash Flow Hedge - Effective Portion of Changes in Fair Value
Exchange differences on translation of Foreign Operation
Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for
using the equity method
Income Tax Relating to Above ltems
Reclassified to Profit or Loss

b) Items that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss
Changes in fair value of FVOCI Equity Instruments
Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment/ Intangible Assets
Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations
Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for
using the equity method
Income Tax Relating to Above Items

Total Other Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax
Total Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax

Fig. in NPR
Current Year |Previous Year
447,425,708 384,065,959
25,342,469 4,821,290
(11,058,658) 6,776,923
(4,285,143) (3,479,464)
9,998,668 8,118,749
457,424,376 392,184,708

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

As per our Report of even date

Raju Kumar Sibakoti, FCA

Partner

For: JBRH & Co.

Chartered Accountants

R. K. Manandhar Ajith R. Gunawardena Lokmanya Golchha Siddharth Mani Rajbhandari
Chairman Director Director Director
Rajendraman Serchan  Gajendra Lal Shrestha Shobha Shrestha Chunky Chhetry Sudhir Tamot

Director Director Independent Director Chief Executive Officer

February 24, 2022
Kathmandu
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Sagarmatha Insurance Company Ltd.

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

B Sagarmatha

INSURANCE COMPANY LTD.

Fig. in NPR

Cash Flow From Operating Actvities:

Cash Received

Gross Premium Received

Commission Received

Claim Recovery Received from Reinsurers

Realised Foreign Exchange Income other than on Cash and Cash Equivalents
Others (to be Specified)

Cash Paid

Gross Claims Paid

Reinsurance Premium Paid

Commission Paid

Service Fees Paid

Employee Benefits Expenses Paid

Other Expenses Paid

Others (to be Specified)

Income Tax Paid

Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities [1]

Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Acquisitions of Intangible Assets

Proceeds From Sale of Intangible Assets
Acquisitions of Investment Properties

Proceeds From Sale of Investment Properties
Rental Income Received

Acquisitions of Property, Plant & Equipment
Proceeds From Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment
Payment for acquisition of Subsidiaries/ Investment in Subsidiaries
Investment in Associates

Receipts from Sale of Investments in Subsidiaries
Receipts from Sale of Investments in Associates
Purchase of Equity Instruments

Proceeds from Sale of Equity Instruments
Purchase of Mutual Funds

Proceeds from Sale of Mutual Funds

Purchase of Preference Shares

Proceeds from Sale of Preference Shares
Purchase of Debentures

Proceeds from Sale of Debentures

Purchase of Bonds

Proceeds from Sale of Bonds

Current Year

Previous Year

2,616,142,581
379,910,179
681,466,648
(937,776)

(1,334,951,041)
(1,493,554,632)
(48,142,589)
(11,225,880)
(265,302,092)
(106,396,937)
(197,506,289)
(188,291,045)

2,299,038,155
386,239,274
550,314,817

(1,046,336,278)
(1,267,175,156)
(46,462,450)
(22,543,516)
(317,943,320)
(93,215,910)
(109,260,055)
(165,072,791)

31,211,127 167,582,770
771,713

11,970,585 12,006,650

(8,906,316)

(54,899,302)

(19,700,964)

(19,535,000)

(262,850,000)

(5,601,467)

(24,581,488)

(4,193,569)

(49,132,376)

(190,914,911)

Investments in Deposits

Maturity of Deposits - -

Proceeds from Finance Lease - -

Loans Paid - -

Proceeds from Loans - -
Continue...
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Current Year

Previous Year

Interest Income Received
Dividend Received
Others (to be Specified)

194,173,858
3,233,369

211,109,475
7,807,028

Total Cash Flow From Investing Activities [2]

(155,742,057)

(43,500,658)

Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Interest Paid

Proceeds From Borrowings
Repayment of Borrowings

Payment of Finance Lease

Proceeds From Issue of Share Capital
Share Issuance Cost Paid

Dividend Paid

Dividend Distribution Tax Paid

Others (to be Specified)

Total Cash Flow From Financing Activities [3]

Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash & Cash Equivalents [1+2+3]

Cash & Cash Equivalents At Beginning of The Year/Period
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash & Cash Equivalents At End of The Year/Period

Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash In Hand

Cheques In Hand

Term Deposit with Banks (with initial maturity upto 3 months)
Balance With Banks

82
(1,505,646) -
(1,505,564) -

(126,036,494) 124,082,112

616,093,464 492,011,352
490,056,970 616,093,464
490,056,970 616,093,464

Notes:

Insurers shall prepare Statement of Cash Flows using Direct Method. Insurers may voluntarily prepare Cash Flow Statement using Indirect

Method as well.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

R. K. Manandhar
Chairman

Ajith R. Gunawardena
Director

Lokmanya Golchha

Director Director

Shobha Shrestha
Independent Director

Rajendraman Serchan
Director

Gajendra Lal Shrestha
Director

Chunky Chhetry

February 24, 2022
Kathmandu
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Sagarmatha Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

1

General Information
Sagarmatha Insurance Company Limited (herein after referred to as the ‘Company’) was incorporated on 17/10/2051
and operated as general insurance company after obtaining license from Insurance Board of Nepal on 3/12/2053 under
the Insurance Act 2049.

The registered office of the Company is located at Bhagwati Marg, Naxal, Kathmandu, Nepal. The Company's shares
are listed and trading on Nepal Stock Exchange

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 24/02/2022.

Basis of Preparation

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS)
issued by the Nepal Accounting Standards Board (ASB), as per the provisions of The Nepal Chartered Accountants
Act, 1997. These conform, in material respect, to NFRS as issued by the Nepal Accounting Standards Board. The
Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The term NFRS, includes all the standards
and the related interpretations which are consistently used.Accounting policies are consistently applied across all
periods reported. The presentation and classification of financial figures relating to previous period are regrouped
or reclassified where relevant to facilitate consistent presentation and better comparability.

Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for following Assets & Liabilities

which have been measured at Fair Value amount:

i. Certain Financial Assets & Liabilities which are required to be measured at fair value

ii. Defined Employee Benefits

ii. Insurance Contract Liabilities which are required to be determined using actuarial valuation for Liability Adequacy
Test (LAT).

Historical cost is generally Fair Value of the consideration given in exchange for goods & services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique.

In addition, for Financial Reporting purposes, Fair Value measurements are categorized into Level 1, or 2, or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the Fair Value measurements are observable & the significance of the
inputs to the Fair Value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 - Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical Assets or Liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 - Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the Asset
or Liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 - Inputs are unobservable inputs for the Asset or Liability.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of these Financial Statements in conformity with NFRS requires management to make estimates,
judgements and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the reported balances of Assets
& Liabilities, disclosures relating to Contingent Liabilities as at the date of the Financial Statements and the reported
amounts of Income & Expenses for the years presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Changes in estimates are reflected in the Financial
Statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the Notes to
the financial statements.
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(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

INSURANCE COMPANY LTD.

Functional and Presentation Currency
These Financial Statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the Company’s functional currency.
All financial information presented in NPR has been rounded to the nearest rupee except where indicated otherwise.

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis. The Board of Directors have considered a wide
range of information relating to present and future conditions, including future projections of profitability, cash flows
and capital resources while assessing the going concern basis. Furthermore, Board is not aware of any material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and they do
not intend either to liquidate or to cease operations of it.

Changes in Accounting Policies

Accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by the Company
in preparing and presenting financial statements. The Company is permitted to change an accounting policy only
if the change is required by a standard or interpretation; or results in the financial statements providing reliable
and more relevant information about the effects of transactions, other events or conditions on the entity's financial
position, financial performance, or cash flows.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The Insurance has, for the preparation of financial statements, adopted the NFRS pronounced by ASB as effective
on September 13, 2013, August 19, 2020 and November 10, 2020. The NFRS conform, in all material respect,
to international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB).

New Accounting standards issued and non-effective

For the reporting of financial instruments, NAS 32 Financial Instruments, Presentation, NAS 39 Financial Instruments
Recognition and Measurements and NFRS 7 Financial Instruments — Disclosures have been applied. NFRS 9 has
been complied for the classification of financial instruments. A number of new standards and amendments to the
existing standards and interpretations have been issued by IASB after the pronouncements of NFRS with varying
effective dates. Those become applicable when ASB Nepal incorporates them within NFRS. A significant impact
on classification and measurement including impairment of financial instruments will arise as a result of application
of NFRS 9 Financial Instruments.

New Standards and Interpretations Not adapted: The following amendments are not mandatory for 2019/20
and have not been early adopted by the insurance. The insurance is still currently assessing the detailed impact
of these amendments — IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments'-Impairment : IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments' was issued
by the IASB in July 2014 and effective internationally for the financials beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
Accounting Standard Board of Nepal endorsed NFRS 9 Financial Instruments with some exceptions, mainly in
the Impairment. Currently, Incurred Loss Model as specified in NAS 39 is used. The requirement of IFRS 9 is
Expected Credit Loss Model.IFRS-15: Revenue from contract with customers: The IASB issued a new standard
for revenue recognition which overhauls the existing revenue recognition standards. The standard requires the
following five step model framework to be followed for revenue recognition:- Identification of the contracts with
the customer- Identification of the performance obligations in the contract- Determination of the transaction price-
Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract (as identified in step ii) Recognition
of revenue when the entity satisfies a performance obligation. The new standard would be effective for annual
periods starting from 1 January 2018 and early application is allowed. The management is assessing the potential
impact on its financial statements resulting from application of IFRS 15. IFRS 15 Revenue from contract with
customers has not yet been adopted by the Accounting Standard Board of Nepal. IFRS 16 ‘Leases': IFRS 16
‘Leases’ is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. IFRS 16 is the new accounting
standard for leases and will replace IAS 17 ‘Leases' and IFRIC 4 ‘Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease'. The new standard removes the distinction between operating or finance leases for lessee accounting,
resulting in all leases being treated as finance leases. All leases will be recognized on the statement of financial
position with the optional exceptions for short-term leases with a lease term of less than 12 months and leases
of low-value assets (for example mobile phones or laptops). A lessee is required to recognize a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make
lease payments. The main reason for this change is that this approach will result in a more comparable representation
of a lessee's assets and liabilities in relation to other companies and, together with enhanced disclosures, will

: 25" Annual Report



[ sagarmatha

INSURANCE COMPANY LTD.

provide greater transparency of a lessee's financial leverage and capital employed. The standard permits a lessee
to choose either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective transition approach. IFRS 16 Leases has not yet
been adopted by the Accounting Standard Board of Nepal) Limitation of NFRS Implementation Wherever the
information is not adequately available, and/or it is impracticable to develop the, such exception to NFRS
implementation has been noted and disclosed in respective sections.

3 Significant Accounting Policies
This note provides a list of the significant policies adopted in the preparation of these Financial Statements.

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

i)

Recognition

Freehold land is carried at historical cost and other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation when, it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and it can be used for more than one year and the cost can
be measured reliably.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it meets the recognition criteria as mentioned above. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Revaluation

After recognition as an asset, lands and buildings whose fair value can be measured reliably, are carried at
revalued amount at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses. Valuations are being performed to ensure that the fair value of a revalued
asset does not materially differ from its carrying amount as at the reporting date. Valuation of the land and
buildings are undertaken by professionally qualified valuers.

An increase in the carrying amount as a result of revaluation, is recognized in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of revaluation reserve. However, the increase is recognized in
profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognized in
profit and loss. A decrease in the carrying amount as a result of revaluation, is recognized in profit or loss.
However, the decrease is recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance existing
in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset.

Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount
of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation
reserve relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred directly to retained earnings. Alternatively,
accumulated depreciation can be increased proportionately as allowed by NAS 16 Difference between depreciation
on the revalued carrying amount of the asset and depreciation based on the asset's original cost is transferred
to retained earnings.

However, no Property, Plant and Equipment of the company has been revalued during the year or are being
carried at revalued amounts.

iii) Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment other than Freehold Land i.e. the Company’s Freehold Building,
Plant & Machinery, Vehicles & Other Assets is provided on "Straight Line Method (SLM)/ Diminishing Balance
Method (DBM)" based on Useful Life estimated by technical expert of the management.

The Assets Useful Life/ Rate of Depreciation and Residual Values are reviewed at the Reporting date and the
effect of any changes in estimates are accounted for on a prospective basis.

Useful Life of Property, Plant and Equipment based on SLM/ DBM is categorized as stated below:
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List of Asset Categories Useful Life (In Years) for SLM Rate of Depreciation (In %) for DBM
Land Not Applicable Not Applicable
Buildings 20 0.05
Leasehold Improvement Lease Period Lease Period
Furniture & Fixtures 4 0.25
Computers and IT Equipment 4 0.25
Office Equipment 4 0.25
Vehicles 5 0.2
Other Assets 4 0.25

iv) Derecognition
An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no Future Economic Benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the Asset. Any Gain or Loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the Asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

v) Impairment
Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the Asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal
and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value
using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific
to the assets. Assets that suffer an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end
of each reporting period. In case of such reversal, the carrying amount of the asset is increased so as not to
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had there been no impairment loss.

vi) Capital Work-In-Progress
These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major plant and machinery
and system development which are to be capitalized. Capital Work in Progress would be transferred to the
relevant asset when it is available for use. Capital Work in Progress is stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

(b) Intangible Assets

i) Recognition
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.
Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and the related
expenditure is reflected in statement of profit or loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

ii) Amortization
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. An intangible asset shall be
regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on an analysis of all of the relevant factors, there is
no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected generate net cash inflow for the entity.

Amortization is recognized in income statement on straight line method over the estimated useful life of the
intangible assets or diminishing balance method from the date that it is available for use since this most closely
reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The
amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed
at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption
of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization period or method,
as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
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iii) Derecognition
An Intangible Asset is derecognized when no Future Economic Benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the Asset. Any Gain or Loss arising on the derecognition is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the Asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

iv) Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that Intangible Assets may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to determine the
extent of impairment, if any. An impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss to the extent,
asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair
value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted
to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and risk specific to the assets.

Company does not have any purchased software as on reporting date. However it has internally generated
software which has been charged off to revenue.

Investment Properties

Cost Model:

Property that is held for rental income or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as investment property.
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including related transaction cost. It is subsequently carried
at cost less accumulated depreciation. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized to the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and
the cost can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

Land is carried at historical cost, however, buildings are depreciated over their estimated useful lives as mentioned
above.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of, or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or
losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in
the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from
investment property to PPE, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of change
in use. If PPE becomes an investment property, the Company accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy stated under PPE up to the date of change in use.

Cash & Cash Equivalent
Cash & Cash Equivalents includes Cash In Hand, Bank Balances and short term deposits with a maturity of three
months or less.

Financial Assets

i) Initial Recognition & Measurement
Financial Assets are recognized when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the Financial Instrument. The Company determines the classification of its Financial Assets at
initial recognition.

When Financial Assets are recognized initially, they are measured at Fair Value, plus, in the case of Financial
Assets not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
Financial Asset. Transaction costs of Financial Assets carried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss are expensed
in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

ii) Subsequent Measurement

a) Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost (AC)
A Financial Asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is
to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the Financial Asset
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give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. Interest income in these financial assets is measured using effective interest rate
method.

b) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
A Financial Asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling Financial Assets and the contractual terms of the
Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding. These financial assets are measured at fair value and changes are
taken to statement of other comprehensive income.

c) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)
A Financial Asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL. These
financial assets are measured at fair value and changes are taken to statement of profit or loss.

iii) De-Recognition

A Financial Asset is derecognized only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from
the Financial Asset. Where the Company has transferred an Asset, the Company evaluates whether it has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the Financial Asset. In such cases, the Financial
Asset is derecognized. Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of the Financial Asset, the Financial Asset is not derecognized. Where the Company retains control of the
Financial Asset, the Asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in the Financial
Asset.

iv) Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred since the initial
recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

Expected Credit Loss for Impairment of Financial Assets is applicable after implementation of NFRS 9
In accordance with NFRS 9 “Financial Instrument”, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) Model,
for evaluating impairment of Financial Assets other than those measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
(FVTPL).

Expected Credit Losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:
The 12-months Expected Credit Losses (Expected Credit Losses that result from those default events on the
Financial Instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or
Full Lifetime Expected Credit Losses (Expected Credit Losses that result from all possible default events over
the life of the Financial Instrument)

For other assets, the Company uses 12 months Expected Credit Losses to provide for impairment loss where
there is no significant increase in credit risk. If there is significant increase in credit risk Full Lifetime ECL is
used.

(f) Financial Liabilities

i) Initial Recognition & Measurement
Financial Liabilities are recognized when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the Financial Instrument. The Company determines the classification of its Financial Liabilities
at initial recognition.
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All Financial Liabilities are recognized initially at Fair Value, plus, in the case of Financial Liabilities not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the issue of the Financial Liability.

ii) Subsequent Measurement
After initial recognition, Financial Liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the Effective
Interest Method.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the date of Statement of Financial Position, the
carrying amounts approximate Fair value due to short maturity of these instruments.

iii) De-Recognition
A Financial Liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing Financial Liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Statement of Financial Position
where there is legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Reinsurance Assets
Reinsurance assets are the assets which are created against insurance contract liabilities of the amount which
are recoverable from the reinsurer. These assets are created for the reinsurer's share of insurance contract liabilities.

A reinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after the initial
recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the Company may not receive all amounts due to it under the terms of
the contract, and the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amount that the company will receive from
the re-insurer. If a reinsurance asset is impaired, the company reduces the carrying amount accordingly and is
recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Equity
Financial Instruments issued by the Company are classified as Equity only to the extent that they do not meet the
definition of a Financial Liability or Financial Asset.

Reserves and Funds

i) Share Premium: If the Company issues share capital at premium it receives extra amount other than share
capital such amount is transferred to share premium. The amount in share premium is allowed for distribution
subject to provisions of company act & regulatory requirement.

ii) Insurance Fund: The Company has allocated insurance fund for the amount which is 50% of the net profit
every year as per Regulator's Directive.

iii) Catastrophe Reserves: The Company has allocated catastrophe reserve for the amount which is 10% of the
net profit for the year as per Regulator's Directive.

iv) Fair Value Reserves: The Company has policy of creating fair value reserve equal to the amount of Fair Value
Gain recognized in statement of other comprehensive income as per regulator’s directive.

v) Regulatory Reserves: Reserve created out of net profit in line with different circulars issued by regulatory
authority.

vi) Actuarial Reserves: Reserve against actuarial gain or loss on present value of defined benefit obligation
resulting from, experience adjustments (the effects of differences between the previous actuarial assumptions
and what has actually occurred); and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions.
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vii) Cashflow Hedge Reserves: Is the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a particular risk

associated with all or a component of a recognized asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction,
and could affect profit or loss. Reserve represent effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument
recognized in other comprehensive income.

viii) Revaluation Reserves: Reserve created against revaluation gain on property, plant & equipment & intangible

ix)

assets, other than the reversal of earlier revaluation losses charged to profit or loss.

Other Reserves: Reserve other than above reserves, for e.g. deferred tax reserve, others (to be specified)

(k) Insurance Contract Liabilities

i)

i)

i)

Provision for unearned premiums
Unearned premiums reserve represents the portion of the premium written in the year but relating to the
unexpired term of coverage.

Change in reserve for unearned insurance premium represents the net portion of the gross written premium
transferred to the unearned premium reserve during the year to cover the unexpired period of the polices.

Outstanding claims provisions
Outstanding claims provisions are based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not settled
at the statement of financial position date, whether reported or not, together with related claims handling costs.

Provision for claim incurred but not reported (IBNR)
Significant delays are experienced in the notification and settlement of certain types of claims, the ultimate
cost of which cannot be known with certainty at the statement of financial position date.

The liability is calculated at the reporting date using a range of standard actuarial claim projection techniques,
based on empirical data and current assumptions that may include a margin for adverse deviation.

Liability adequacy

At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risk and a liability adequacy test is performed to
determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and deferred acquisition costs over unearned
premiums. The calculation uses current estimates of future contractual cash flows after taking account of the
investment return expected to arise on assets relating to the relevant non-life insurance technical provisions.
If these estimates show that the carrying amount of the unearned premiums is inadequate, the deficiency is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss by setting up a provision for liability.

() Employee Benefits

i)

Short Term Obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognized in
respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations
in the Statement of Financial Position.

Post - Employment Benefits

- Defined Contribution Plan

The Company pays Provident Fund contributions to publicly administered Provident Funds as per local
regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contribution are recognized as Employee
Benefit Expense when they are due.

- Defined Benefit Plan

For Defined Benefit Plan , the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method,
with Actuarial Valuations being carried out at each Statement of Financial Position. Actuarial Gains & Losses
are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which they occur. Past service cost is
recognized immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested and otherwise is amortized on a
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Straight Line Basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. The retirement benefit obligation
recognized in the Statement of Financial Position represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation
as adjusted for unrecognized past service cost, as reduced by the Fair Value of plan Assets (If Any). Any Asset
resulting from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and
reductions in future contributions to the plan.

Long Term Employee Benefits

The liabilities for un-availed earned leaves are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service. Leave Encashment has been computed
using Actuarial Assumptions and these are measured at the present value of expected future payments to
be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the year using the Projected Unit
Credit Method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the year that have terms
approximating to the terms of assumptions.

Termination

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the normal retirement
date, or when an employee accepts voluntary retirement in exchange of these benefits. The Company
recognizes termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates:

a) when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and

b) when the entity recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of NAS 37 and involves the
payment of termination benefits.

The termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer in
case of voluntary retirement scheme.

(m) Revenue Recognition

i)

i)

Gross Earned Premiums

Gross Earned Premiums are arrived at after deducting unearned premium reserves from Direct Premium and
included Premiums on Reinsurance Accepted and also includes unearned premium of previous year which
has matured in current financial year. Direct premiums comprise the total premiums receivable for the whole
period of cover provided by contracts entered into during the reporting period. They are recognized on the
date on which the policy commences.

Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of risk after the
reporting date. Unearned premiums are calculated on a daily pro rata basis. The proportion attributable to
subsequent periods is deferred as a provision for unearned premiums.

Reinsurance Premium

Direct Reinsurance premiums comprise the total premiums payable for the whole cover provided by contracts
entered into the period and are recognized on the date on which the policy incepts. Premiums include any
adjustments arising in the accounting period in respect of reinsurance contracts incepting in prior accounting
periods.

Unearned reinsurance premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods
of risk after the reporting date. Unearned reinsurance premiums are deferred over the term of the underlying
direct insurance policies for risks- attaching contracts and over the term of the reinsurance contract for losses
occurring contracts.

Reinsurance premiums and claims on the face of the statement of profit or loss have been presented as
negative items within premiums and net claims, respectively, because this is consistent with how the business
is managed.

Commission Income
Commission Income is recognized on accrual basis. If the income is for future periods, then they are deferred
and recognized over those future periods.

Investment income

Interest income is recognized in the statement of profit or loss as it accrues and is calculated by using the EIR
method. Fees and commissions that are an integral part of the effective yield of the financial asset are
recognized as an adjustment to the EIR of the instrument.
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Investment income also includes dividends when the right to receive payment is established.

v) Net realized gains and losses
Net realized gains and losses recorded in the statement of profit or loss include gains and losses on financial
assets and properties. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as the difference between
net sales proceeds and the original or amortized cost and are recorded on occurrence of the sale transaction.

Product Classification

Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance risk
from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified uncertain future
event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders. As a general guideline, the Company determines
whether it has significant insurance risk by comparing benefits paid with benefits payable if the insured event did
not occur. Insurance contracts can also transfer financial risk.

The Company has following portfolios under which it operates its business:

i)  Fire Portfolio - Fire insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out contracts of insurance,
otherwise than incidental to some other class of insurance business against loss or damage to property due
to fire, explosion, storm and other occurrences customarily included among the risks insured against in the
fire insurance business.

ii) Motor Portfolio - Motor insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out contracts of
insurance against loss of, or damage to, or arising out of or in connection with the use of, motor vehicles,
inclusive of third party risks but exclusive of transit risks.

iii) Marine Portfolio - Marine insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out contracts of
insurance against loss of consignment of goods during transit.

iv) Engineering Portfolio - Engineering insurance business means the insurance that provides economic safeguard
to the risks faced by the ongoing construction project, installation project, and machines and equipment in
project operation.

v) Micro Portfolio - Micro Insurance protects against loss of or damage to crops or livestock. It has great potential
to provide value to low-income farmers and their communities, both by protecting farmers when shocks occur
and by encouraging greater investment in crops.

vi) Aviation Portfolio — Aviation Insurance provides coverage for hull losses as well as liability for passenger
injuries, environmental and third-party damage caused by aircraft accidents.

vii) Cattle and Crop Portfolio - Cattle and Crop Insurance provides insurance against loss of or damage to Cattle
and crops.

viii) Miscellaneous Portfolio — All other insurance business which don’t fall in above categories fall under miscellaneous
insurance business. Group Personal Accidents, Medical Insurances, Professional indemnity insurance etc.
fall under this category of business.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Cash Flow Statement
Cash Flows are reported using the direct method, whereby major classes of cash receipts and cash payments
are disclosed as cash flows.
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(q) Leases

Finance Leases

Leases in which the Company has substantial portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
Finance Leases. Assets acquired under Finance Leases are capitalized at the lower of the Fair Value of the Leased
Assets at the inception of the Lease Term & the Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments. Lease Payments
are apportioned between the Finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The Finance Charge
is allocated to periods during the Lease Term at a constant periodic Rate of Interest on the remaining balance of
the liability.

Operating Lease

Leases in which the Company doesn’t have substantial portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as Operating Leases. Payment made under Operating Leases are charged to Statement of Profit & Loss on a
Straight Line Basis.

(r) Income Taxes
Income Tax Expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable & Deferred Tax.

i) Current Tax
Current Tax Expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses relate. Provision
for Current Income Tax is made for the Tax Liability payable on Taxable Income after considering tax allowances,
deductions and exemptions determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the prevailing tax
laws.

ii) Deferred Tax
Deferred Tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of Assets & Liabilities in
the Statement of Financial Position and their Tax Base. Deferred tax Assets & Liabilities are recognized for
deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of Assets & Liabilities and their
carrying amount in Financial Statements, except when the Deferred Income Tax arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill, an Asset or Liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting
nor taxable Profits or Loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred Tax Assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible Temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilized.

Deferred Tax Liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable Temporary differences.

The carrying amount of Deferred Tax Assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the Deferred Tax
Asset to be utilized.

(s) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets

(i) Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, for which it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate to determine the present
value is a Pre-Tax Rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest
expense.

Provisions for Contingent Liability are recognized in the books as a matter of abundant precaution and
conservative approach based on management's best estimate. However, Management believes that chances
of these matters going against the company are remote and there will not be any probable cash outflow.
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(i) Contingent Liabilities
Contingent liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible obligation arising from past events due to
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources or
where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Obligations are assessed on an ongoing basis
and only those having a largely probable outflow of resources are provided for.

(iii) Contingent Assets
Contingent assets where it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company are not recognized
but disclosed in the Financial Statements.

Foreign Currency Transactions

The Financial Statements of the Company are presented in Nepalese Rupees, which is the Company’s Functional
Currency. In preparing the Financial Statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the
Company’s Functional Currency i.e. Foreign Currencies are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions.

Earnings Per Share
Basic Earning per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the company by the Weighted
Average Number of equity shares outstanding during the Financial Year.

For diluted earning per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Operating Segment
Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker (CODM) as defined by NFRS 8, “Operating Segment”.

Company’s Income & Expenses including interest are considered as part of un-allocable Income & Expenses
which are not identifiable to any business segment. Company’s Asset & Liabilities are considered as part of un-
allocable Assets & Liabilities which are not identifiable to any business.
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Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Softwares

Licenses

Others (to be

Specified) Total

Gross carrying amount

As at Shrawan 1, 2077

Additions

Acquisition

Internal Development

Business Combination (to be Specified)
Disposals

Revaluation

Balance as at Ashad 31, 2078

Accumulated amortization and impairment
As at Shrawan 1, 2077

Additions

Disposals

Impairment losses

Impairment Reversal

Balance as at Ashad 31, 2078

Net Carrying Amount

As at Ashad 31, 2077

As at Ashad 31, 2078

25" Annual Report :

37



08.'c97'69

2£6'88

8v2'2L9'LL

6€9'/28'L

79€‘80€'6

6L€°1L6°C)

veL'6e8‘ch

875'699‘8

ZhL'rS'sL

198269

9.1'1e1'ee

062°279'6

L16'696'L

16511621

€11'005°€)

8/5'699°8

v0L'07L'6

60.L'€6LvZ)

(¥S#'501)
GEG'SLT YL
82989041

0Zv'960°C

626'€01
L6Y'266'L

18.'€96'0%

(¥S#'501)
290'8LY'Y
£/1'169'9¢

985'78.°LZ

128'€95°C
65.'02¢'sC

950°cZL'LL

298'119°C
v6L'Gry vl

29.'689'L¢

918'9.L°¢
96'806°€C

6€0'G/9
G90°G9r'g

8€8'G96°12

875'699°8

681'LG2'761

(0z6'zy))

G90°CLL'8

vve'8ce'98)

25£'689°C

25€'589°C

620'9£9'85

(0z6'zyL)

676'8LL'8S

1zz'z19'se

TLV'6YL

6Y0'€98'7¢

0Zv'LEv'az

60€9L0'Y

LeLyee

180°25Z°0p

¥85'907'¢

16v'098'9¢

8€8'596'1C

8v5'699'8

8102 ‘1€ peysy je sy
LL0T ‘1€ peysy je sy
junowy Buifiies joN
8107 ‘1€ Peysy je se aduejeg
[es1aAa1 JuawIredw|

$9550| JuaWeduw|
s|esodsiq

uonesijende)

suonippy

1102 ‘) uemelys je sy
ssalboid-u-yiop [eyden

802 ‘1€ peysy Je se asuejeg

sjuswisnlpe /iajsuel]

|eSI9A8] Juswiedw|

$95S0| JusWIredw|

SHO-3JUM

sjesodsiq

uoneroaidaqg

110 ‘) uemelys je sy

juawuiedw pue uoperoaidap pajejnwnady

8102 ‘L€ peysy je se aouejeg
sjuswisnlpe /iajsuel]
uoljenjeasy

SHO-8JLIM

sjesodsiq

uonesijeyded

uonisinboy

SuonIppY

L10T ‘) uemelys je sy
junowe Buihiied ssoig

lejoL

sjassy
18yi0

S[oIyap

juawdinbg
140

syuawdinb3g |
pue sia)ndwos

sain)xi4
pue ainjjuing

juswanoaduw)
ployasea

sbul

ing

pueq

siejnoiued

ddN ut b4

Sagarmatha
INSURANCE COMPANY LTD

4

juawdinbg pue jue|d ‘Aadoid g

(1zoz ‘g1 AInr) 8202 ‘L€ peysy papua Jeak ay) Jo4
Sjuawiajels |eloueul{ ayj o) S9JON

‘p41 Aundwio) aruninsuj nyipwanhing

25™ Annual Report

38



Sagarmatha Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

6

Investment Properties

B Sagarmatha

INSURANCE COMPANY LTD.

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Land

Building

Total

Gross carrying amount

As at Shrawan 1, 2077
Additions

Disposals

Transfer/ adjustments

Balance as at Ashad 31, 2078

Depreciation and impairment
As at Shrawan 1, 2077
Depreciation

Disposals

Impairment losses

Impairment reversal

Transfer/ adjustments

Balance as at Ashad 31, 2078

Capital Work-In-Progress

As at Shrawan 1, 2077
Additions

Capitalization

Disposals

Impairment losses

Impairment reversal

Balance as at Ashad 31, 2078

Net Carrying Amount
As at Ashad 31, 2077
As at Ashad 31, 2078

100,005,359

26,015,510

126,020,869

100,005,359

26,015,510

126,020,869

10,581,285
771,71

10,581,285
771,711

11,352,996

11,352,996

100,005,359

15,434,225

115,439,584

100,005,359

14,662,514

114,667,871

(i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Rental income

Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental income
Direct operating expenses from property that didn't generate rental income

Profit from investment properties before depreciation
Depreciation
Profit from investment properties

11,970,585 12,006,650
11,970,585 12,006,650

771,711) (812,328)
11,198,874 11,194,322
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Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities)

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Intangible Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment
Financial Assets at FVTPL

Financial Assets at FVTOCI
Provision for Leave Encashment
Defined Benefits Plan (Gratuity)*
Impairment Loss on Financial Assets
Impairment Loss on Other Assets
Tax losses

Other

i) Deferred commission income
i) Deferred commission expense
iii) Incurred but not reported

iv) Operating lease liability

v) Operating lease Assets

vi) Premium

Total

(1,070,894) | (1,434,599)
(9,023,898) 527,233
10,459,616 9,474,170
29,157,575 26,298,209
- 7,109,319
5,639,863 -
45,294,988 50,053,323
(6,375,123)
1,993,149
826,934 615,684
14,742,566 -
91,644,776 92,643,339

Till last year company has the practice of taking deduction of on employee gratuity expenses, which is deposited

in Citizen Investment Trust (CIT) on account of company, while computing income tax expenses. On 23/07/2077
company has received assessment order issued by Large Taxpayer Office for Income Year 2072/073. As per
assessment order issued by tax authority, company is not allowed to deduct gratuity expenses merely on deposit
made at CIT, as it is non-contributory and such amount is not included in employment income of employee. Deduction
of gratuity is allowed at the time of payment to employee by CIT. This creates deductible temporary difference.
Accordingly, company has created deferred tax assets of Rs. 20,004,102 as prior period adjustments. Similarly,
the gross liabilty has been taken from actuary valuation of which was been done in Net method previously adjusting

Planed assets . Thus Deferred tax has been restated accordingly.

Movements in deferred tax assets/ (liablities)

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

As at Shrawan 1, 2077
Charged/(Credited) to Profit or Loss

Charged/(Credited) to Other Comprehensive Income

As at Ashad 31, 2078

92,643,338 90,114,954

3,286,580 6,007,848
(4,285,142) (3,479,464)
91,644,776 92,643,338
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Fig. in NPR
8 Investment in Subsidiaries
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Investment in Quoted Susidiaries - -
Investment in Unquoted Susidiaries - -
Less: Impairment Losses = -
Total - -
Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Cost Fair Value Cost| Fair Value
........... Shares of Rs.............eachof ................ Ltd. - - - -
........... Shares of Rs.............eachof ................ Ltd. - - - -
Total - - - -
Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Cost Fair Value Cost| Fair Value
........... Shares of Rs.............eachof ................ Ltd. - - - -
........... Shares of Rs.............eachof ................ Ltd. - - - -

Total - - - -

Information Relating to Subsidiaries

Percentage of Ownership
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
........... Shares of Rs.............each of ................ Ltd. - -
........... Shares of Rs.............eachof ................ Ltd. - -
........... Shares of Rs.............each of ................ Ltd. - -
........... Shares of Rs.............each of ................ Ltd. - -
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Investment in Associates

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investment in Quoted Associates
Investment in Unquoted Associates
Less: Impairment Losses

Total

Investment in Quoted Associates

Current Year

Previous Year

Particulars Cost | Fair Value| (or) Equity Cost | Fair Value| (or) Equity

Method Method
......... Shares of Rs. .......each of ............ Ltd. - - - - - -
......... Shares of Rs ........each of ............ Ltd. - - - - - -

Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year
Total

Investment in Unquoted Associates

Current Year

Previous Year

Particulars Cost |Fair Value | (or) Equity Cost | Fair Value| (or) Equity

Method Method
......... Shares of Rs. .......eachof ............ Ltd - = = - - -
......... Shares of Rs ........each of ............ Ltd. - - = - - -

Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year
Total

Information Relating to Associates

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Name

Place of Business

Accounting Method

% of Ownership

Current Assets

Non-Current Assets

Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Income

Net Profit or Loss

Other Comprehensive Income
Total Comprehensive Income
Company's share of profits
Net Profit or Loss

Other Comprehensive Income
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Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investments measured at Amortised Cost

i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions

i) Investmentin Debentures

ii) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by
Nepal Government)

iv) Fixed Deposits in "A" Class Financial Institutions

v) Fixed Deposits in Infrastructure Banks

vi) Fixed Deposits in "B" Class Financial Institutions

vii) Fixed Deposits in "C" Class Financial Institutions

viii) Others (to be Specified)
Less: Impairment Losses

Investments measured at FVTOCI

i) Investment in Equity Instruments

ii) Investmentin Equity Instruments (Quoted)
ii) Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)
iv) Investment in Mutual Funds

v) Investment in debenture

vi) Others (to be Specified)

Investments measured at FVTPL

i) Investment in Equity Instruments

i) Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)
i) Investment in Mutual Funds

iv) Others (to be Specified)

186,458,000

1,980,900,000
272,100,000
68,600,000

234,435,334
168,204,900
60,353,078

166,923,000

1,757,700,000
250,350,000
50,700,000

153,831,663
168,566,800
40,652,114

2,971,051,312

2,588,723,577

a) Details of Impairment Losses

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions
Investment in Debentures

Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by
Nepal Government)

Fixed Deposit with "A" Class Financial Institutions

Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Banks

Fixed Deposits with "B" Class Financial Institutions

Fixed Deposits with "C" Class Financial Institutions

Others (to be Specified)

Total

Continue...
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b) Investments having expected maturities less than 12 months

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)

Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)

Investment in Mutual Funds

Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions
Investment in Debentures

Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by
Nepal Government)

Fixed Deposit with "A" Class Financial Institutions

Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Banks

Fixed Deposits with "B" Class Financial Institutions

Fixed Deposits with "C" Class Financial Institutions

Others (to be Specified)

Total

186,458,000

1,980,900,000

272,100,000
68,600,000

38,377,000

1,754,200,000

245,350,000
49,200,000

2,508,058,000

2,087,127,000

c) The Company has earmarked investments amounting to NPR 66.10 Crore to Insurance Board

11 Loans

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Loan to Associates

Loan to Employees

Loan to Agents

Others (to be Specified)
Less: Impairment Losses
Total

a) Expected recovery within 12 months

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Loan to Associates
Loan to Employees
Loan to Agents

Others (to be Specified)
Total
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Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Reinsurance Assets on:

Unearned Premiums 514,553,020 502,136,763
Premium Deficiency - -
IBNR and IBNER Claims 144,268,613 -
Outstanding Claims 1,190,019,866 393,280,614
Margin For Adverse Deviations = -
Less: Impairment Losses = -
Total 1,848,841,499 895,417,377
Insurance Receivables

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

Receivable from Reinsurers

Receivable from Other Insurance Companies
Others (to be Specified)

Less: Impairment Losses

Total

245749,107 | 337,978,990
260,027,206 82,636,139
(18,799,543) -
486,976,770 | 420,615,129

a) Expected recovery within 12 months

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Receivable from Reinsurers 245,749,107 337,978,990
Receivable from Other Insurance Companies 260,027,206 82,636,139
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total 505,776,313 420,615,129
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14 Other Assets

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Sundry Advances 27,829,809 11,581,284
Prepaid Expenses 389,337 924,036
Claim Advances 42,928,605 44,699,200
Advances to Suppliers - -
Staff Advances 3,642,770 3,847,732
VAT Receivable - -
Printing and Stationery Stocks = -
Stamp Stocks 100,980 128,965
Deferred Expenses - -
Deferred Re-Insurance Commission Expenses 40,043 1,587,947
Deferred Agent Commission Expenses 21,210,367 19,742,389
Finance Lease Receivables - -
Others

i) Operating lease receivable - -
i) TDS Receivable - -
iii) Others 72,053,433 66,869,302
Less: Impairment Losses - -
Total 168,195,344 149,380,855

* Others reflect the Planned Asset i.e. CIT Gratuity Fund which was previously shown adjusting Provision for Gratuity.

a) Expected to be recovered/ settled within 12 months

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Sundry Advances 27,829,809 11,581,284
Prepaid Expenses 389,337 924,036
Claim Advances 42,928,605 44,699,200
Advances to Suppliers - -
Staff Advances 3,642,770 3,847,732
VAT Receivable - -
Printing and Stationery Stocks = -
Stamp Stocks 100,980 128,965
Deferred Expenses - -
Deferred Re-Insurance Commission Expenses 40,043 1,587,947
Deferred Agent Commission Expenses 21,210,367 19,742,389
Finance Lease Receivables - -
Others - -
Total 96,141,911 82,511,553
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Other Financial Assets
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Security Deposits 11,495,913 4,048,302
Accrued Interest 22,105,707 26,081,650
Other Receivables 8,626,306 10,297,843
Other Deposits - -
Sundry Debtors 112,406,769 31,865,118
Other (to be Specified) - -
Less: Impairment Losses - -
Total 154,634,695 72,292,913
a) Expected maturities within 12 months
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Security Deposits
Accrued Interest 22,105,707 26,081,650
Other Receivables 8,626,306 10,297,843
Other Deposits - -
Sundry Debtors 112,406,769 31,865,118
Other (to be Specified) - -
Total 143,138,782 68,244,611

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Cash in Hand
Cheques in Hand
Bank Balances

i) Balance with "A" Class Financial Institutions 394,288,422 488,149,844
ii) Balance with Infrastructure Banks - -
iii) Balance with "B" Class Financial Institutions 62,245,108 114,067,081
iv) Balance with "C" Class Financial Institutions 33,523,440 13,876,539
Less: Impairment Losses - -
Deposits with initial maturity upto 3 months - -
Others (to be Specified) - -
Less: Impairment Losses - -
Total 490,056,970 616,093,464

Continue...
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17 (a) Share Capital

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Ordinary Shares

As at Shrawan 1, 2077

Additions during the year

i) Bonus Share Issue

ii) Share Issue

As at Ashad 31, 2078

Convertible Preference Shares (Equity Component Only)
As at Shrawan 1, 2077

Additions during the year

As at Ashad 31, 2078

Irredeemable Preference Shares (Equity Component Only)
As at Shrawan 1, 2077

Additions during the year

As at Ashad 31, 2078

Total

1,001,222,900

110,134,600

1,001,222,900

1,111,357,500

1,001,222,900

1,111,357,500

1,001,222,900

(i) Ordinary Shares

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Authorised Capital:

20,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each
Issued Capital:

15,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each
Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:

1,001,229 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each
Total

2,000,000,000

1,500,000,000

1,111,357,500

2,000,000,000

1,500,000,000

1,001,222,900

1,111,357,500

1,001,222,900

(ii) Preference Share Capital

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Authorised Capital:

........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ... each
........ Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ... each
Issued Capital:

........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ... each
........ Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ... each
Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:

........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ... each
........ Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ... each
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Shareholding Structure of Share Capital
Number of Shares Percentage
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Promoters
Government of Nepal
Nepali Organized Institutions 2,159,178 1,945,205 0.19 0.18
Nepali Citizens 3,507,713 3,160,102 0.32 0.28
Foreigners
Ceylinco Insurance PLC, Srilanka 2,222,315 2,002,085 0.20 0.18
Total (A) 7,889,206 7,107,392 0.71 0.64
Other than Promoters
General Public 3,224,369 2,904,837 0.29 0.26
Others (to be Specified)
Total (B) 3,224,369 2,904,837 0.29 0.26
Total (A+B) 11,113,575 10,012,229 1.00 0.90
Details of shareholders holding 1% or more than 1% of the aggregate shares in the Company
Number of Shares Percentage

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Salt Trading Corporation Limited 67,540,882 60,847,641 6.08 6.08
Dibya Mani Rajbhandari 56,646,690 51,033,054 5.10 5.10
Sunrise Bank Ltd 55,557,032 58,883,880 5.00 5.88
Overseas Trading Company Private Limited 30,502,806 27,131,405 2.74 2.71
Narendra Kumar Agrawal 27,782,168 25,028,980 2.50 2.50
Ashok Kumar Todi 27,778,132 29,258,644 2.50 2.92
Ram Krishna Manandhar 21,787,058 19,627,980 1.96 1.96
Himal And Company Pvt. Ltd 21,787,103 19,628,021 1.96 1.96
Jyoti And Company Pvt Ltd 21,787,103 19,628,021 1.96 1.96
Bhajuratna And Company Pvt. Ltd 21,787,103 19,628,021 1.96 1.96
Ramlal Ji Dhapidevi Golchha Charity Trust 20,028,120 18,043,351 1.80 1.80
Lokmanya Golchha 17,656,370 15,906,640 1.59 1.59
Sushil Kumar Pant 16,340,112 14,720,822 1.47 1.47
Amrita Parajuli 13,744,270 12,882,225 1.24 1.29
Sanjay Golchha 13,624,575 12,274,392 1.23 1.23
Shekhar Golchha 13,614,251 12,265,091 1.23 1.23
Surendra Kumar Golchha 13,614,174 12,265,022 1.23 1.23
Pradip Kumar Roongta 13,072,520 11,777,045 1.18 1.18
Jaishree Golchha 12,204,450 - 1.10 -
Chandra Kumar Golchha 12,082,451 11,865,091 1.09 1.19
Rajendra Man Sherchan 11,111,769 10,010,603 1.00 1.00
Ceylinco Insurance Plc 222,231,467 200,208,529 20.00 20.00

732,280,606 662,914,458 65.89 66.24
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17 (b) Share Application Money Pending Allotment

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Share Application Money Pending Allotment
Total

17(c) Share Premium

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

As at Shrawan 1, 2077

Increase due to issue of shares at premium
Decrease due to issue of bonus shares
Transaction costs on issue of shares
Others (to be Specified)

As at Ashad 31, 2078

17(d) Insurance Fund

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
As at Shrawan 1, 2077 819,414,355 631,435,772
Additions 219,500,330 187,978,583
Utilizations - -
As at Ashad 31, 2078 1,038,914,685 819,414,355

17(e) Catastrophe Reserves

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
As at Shrawan 1, 2077 114,474,073 95,190,121
Additions 22,117,687 19,283,952
Utilizations (37,339,532) -
As at Ashad 31, 2078 99,252,228 114,474,073
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17(f) Retained Earnings

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

As at Shrawan 1, 2077

Net Profit or Loss

Iltems of OCI recognised directly in retained earnings
Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations
Transfer to reserves

Capital Reserves

Insurance Fund

Catastrophe Reserves

Regulatory Reserves

Fair Value Reserves

Actuarial Reserves

Revaluation Reserves

Deferred Tax Reserves

Compulsory Reserve Fund

116,875,213
447,425,708
5,875,323

(219,500,330)
15,221,845
(5,138,471)

998,563

(40,981,930)
384,065,958

(187,978,583)
(19,283,952)
(3,247,854)

(2,528,385)

Transfer of Depreciation on Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment - -
Transfer on Disposal of Revalued Property, Plant and Equipment - -
Transfer on Disposal of Equity Instruments Measured at FVTOCI - -

Transaction costs on issuance of shares
Issuance of Bonus Shares

(110,134,519)

Dividend Paid (5,796,554)

Dividend Distribution Tax - -
Others - -
Adjustment of prior period (4,884,363) (13,170,041)
As at Ashad 31, 2078 240,942,415 116,875,213

17(g) Other Equity

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Capital Reserves - -
Insurance Reserves 49,500,475 49,500,475
Regulatory Reserves 7,239,416 3,247,854
Fair Value Reserves 21,055,762 9,191,357
Actuarial Reserves (36,204,087) (28,463,026)
Revaluation Reserves = -
Rent Equilization Fund 2,756,449 2,052,281
Cash Flow Hedge Reserves - -
Other Reserves 89,327,715 90,326,279
Total 133,675,730 125,855,220
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18 Provisions

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Provisions for employee benefits
i) Provision for Leave Encashment 34,865,384 31,580,567
i) Defined Benefits Plan (Gratuity) 97,191,916 87,660,697
iii) Termination Benefits - -
iv) Other employee benefit obligations (to be specified) - -
Provision for tax related legal cases - -
Provision for non-tax related legal cases - -
Others (to be Specified) 5,047,825 5,360,058
Total 137,105,125 124,601,322
* Others include Vat penalty provision of Rs. 45,91,991
(a) Additional Disclosure under of Provisions
Additions Utilised Reversed

L Opening | During the | During the | During the |Unwinding of| Closing

Description Balance Year Year Year Discount Balance

Provision for tax related
legal cases - -

Provision for non-tax
legal cases - -

(b) Provision with expected payouts within 12 months

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Provisions for employee benefits

i) Provision for Leave Encashment

i) Defined Benefits Plan (Gratuity)

iii) Termination Benefits

iv) Other employee benefit obligations (to be specified)
Provision for tax related legal cases

Provision for non-tax related legal cases

Others (to be Specified)

Total

19 Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Unearned Premiums

Premium Deficiency

IBNR and IBNER Claims
Outstanding Claims

Margin For Adverse Deviations
Total

1,152,360,401

234,345,011
1,746,236,980

1,022,020,848

135,336,750
826,050,411

3,132,942,392

1,983,408,009
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Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Payable to Reinsurers

Payable to Other Insurance Companies
Withdrawal Premiums

Withdrawal Claims

Others (to be Specified)

Total

63,801,165 118,654,890
1,030,659 170,044,910
60,643,541 68,947,576
75,928,362 56,072,257
201,403,727 413,719,633

Payable within 12 months

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Payable to Reinsurers

Payable to Other Insurance Companies
Withdrawal Premiums

Withdrawal Claims

Others (to be Specified)

Total

63,801,165 118,654,890
1,030,659 170,044,910
60,643,541 68,947,576
75,928,362 56,072,257
201,403,727 413,719,633

Current Tax (Assets)/ Liabilities (Net)

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Income Tax Liabilities
Income Tax Assets

864,680,428
(918,489,377)

676,389,383
(707,555,609)

Total (53,808,949) (31,166,226)
Borrowings

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Bonds - -
Debentures - -

Term Loans - Bank and Financial Institution
Bank Overdrafts

Others (to be Specified)

Total

Payable within 12 months

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Bonds

Debentures

Term Loans - Bank and Financial Institution
Bank Overdrafts

Others (to be Specified)

Total
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23 Other Financial Liabilities

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Redeemable Preference Shares
Irredeemable Cumulative Preference Shares
Payable to Agents

Payable to Surveyors

Refundable Share Application Money
Payable to Insured

Sundry Creditors

Retention and deposits

Short-term employee benefits payables

i) Salary Payables

ii) Bonus Payables

iii) Other employee benefit payables (to be Specified)
Audit Fee Payable

Dividend Payable

Others

i) Provident Fund

ii) Citizen Investment Trust

Total

5,671,012

152,610

47,867,896 41,820,307
70,029,124 86,884,302
- 340,000

5,796,554 1,505,646
129,364,586 130,702,865

Payable within 12 months

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Redeemable Preference Shares
Irredeemable Cumulative Preference Shares
Payable to Agents

Payable to Surveyors

Refundable Share Application Money
Payable to Insured

Sundry Creditors

Retention and deposits

Short-term employee benefits payables

i) Salary Payables

i) Bonus Payables

iii) Other employee benefit payables (to be Specified)
Audit Fee Payable

Dividend Payable

Others

i) Provident Fund

ii) Citizen Investment Trust

Total

5,671,012

152,610

47,867,896 41,820,307
70,029,124 86,884,302
- 340,000

5,796,554 1,505,646
129,364,586 130,702,865
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24 Other Liabilities

= Sagarmatha

INSURANCE COMPANY LTD.

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
TDS Payable 12,187,936 6,334,133
VAT Payable 27,622,677 24,292,168
Deposit Premiums 7,349,817 7,078,145
Deferred Commission Income 150,983,292 166,844,411
Insurance Service Fee Payable 26,161,426 22,409,300
Lease Liability 78,430 85,429
Deferred Income - -
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total 224,383,578 227,043,586

Payable within 12 months

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
TDS Payable 12,187,936 6,334,133
VAT Payable 27,622,677 24,292,168
Deposit Premiums 7,349,817 7,078,145
Deferred Commission Income 150,983,292 166,844,411
Insurance Service Fee Payable 26,161,426 22,409,300
Lease Liability 78,430 85,429
Deferred Income - -
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total 224,383,578 227,043,586
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Sagarmatha Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

25 Gross Earned Premiums

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Direct Premiums

Premiums on Reinsurance Accepted
Gross Change in Unearned Premiums

Total

2,495,554,039
120,588,542
(130,339,553)

2,178,950,743
75,400,946
22,343,233

2,485,803,028

2,276,694,922

Portfolio-wise details of Gross Earned Premiums

Direct Premiums Premiums on Reinsurance Accepted | Gross Change in Unearned Premiums | Gross Earned Premiums
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year| Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year | Current Year |Previous Year
Fire 599,991,243| 527,942,126 120,184 412,023 (32,157,299) 258,925| 567,954,128 528,613,074
Motor 1,200,758,254| 1,104,527,960 120,125,893 60,748,977 (48,648,981) (26,668,464) | 1,272,235,166 (1,138,608,473
Marine 166,680,982 134,120,778 57,280 700,563 (14,204,429) 39,306,284 152,533,833 174,127,625
Engineering 194,048,124 198,439,536 - - 35,829,594 38,214,195 229,877,718 236,653,731
Micro 56,018,195 24,310,111 - 13,290,464 (6,245,208) (21,473,646)| 49,772,987 16,126,929
Aviation 70,424,683 - 16,388 16,700 (46,168,350) (14,498)| 24,272,721 2,202
Cattle and Crop 83,267,785 47,997,460 - - (19,427,425) (2,108,712)| 63,840,360 45,888,748
Miscellaneous 124,364,773 141,612,772 268,797 232,219 682,545 (5,170,851)| 125,316,115 136,674,140
Total 2,495,554,039| 2,178,950,743 120,588,542 75,400,946 (130,339,553) 22,343,233 | 2,485,803,028 (2,276,694,922

26 Premiums Ceded

58

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Premiums Ceded to Reinsurers

Reinsurer's Share of Change in Unearned Premiums

Total

1,493,5654,632
(12,416,257)

1,267,175,156
28,474,648

1,481,138,375

1,295,649,804

Portfolio-wise detail of Premiums Ceded to Reinsurers

Premiums Ceded to Reinsurer's Share of Change in
Reinsurers Unearned Premiums Premium Ceded

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year | Current Year |Previous Year

Fire 417,693,927 | 382,456,855 15,501,823 (4,393,550) | 433,195,750 378,063,305
Motor 478,502,290 393,842,574 15,879,907 (22,120,556) | 494,382,197 371,722,018
Marine 130,654,566 | 110,580,881 11,063,370 31,113,570 141,717,936 141,694,451
Engineering 183,518,391| 190,151,824 20,338,954 37,473,354 | 203,857,345 227,625,178
Micro 31,856,893 19,340,560 (6,376,344) (9,323,550)| 25,480,549 10,017,010
Aviation 70,149,624 - (46,037,125) 24,112,500 -
Cattle and Crop 66,614,228 38,397,968 (18,126,600) (985,361)| 48,487,628 37,412,607
Miscellaneous 114,564,713 | 132,404,494 (4,660,241) (3,289,259) | 109,904,472 129,115,235
Total 1,493,554,632 | 1,267,175,156 (12,416,257) 28,474,648 1,481,138,375| 1,295,649,804
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Net Earned Premiums

B Sagarmatha

INSURANCE COMPANY LTD.

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Gross Earned Premiums
Premiums Ceded
Total

2,485,803,028
(1,481,138,375)

2,276,694,922
(1,295,649,804)

1,004,664,653

981,045,118

Portfolio-wise detail of Net Earned Premiums

Gross Earned Premiums Premiums Ceded Net Earned Premiums

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year | Current Year |Previous Year

Fire 567,954,128 | 528,613,074 | (433,195,750) (378,063,305) | 134,758,378 150,549,769
Motor 1,272,235,166 | 1,138,608,473 | (494,382,197) (371,722,018)| 777,852,969 766,886,455
Marine 152,533,833 | 174,127,625 | (141,717,936) (141,694,451)| 10,815,897 32,433,174
Engineering 229,877,718 236,653,731 (203,857,345) (227,625,178)| 26,020,373 9,028,553
Micro 49,772,987 16,126,929 (25,480,549) (10,017,010)| 24,292,438 6,109,919
Aviation 24,272,721 2,202 (24,112,500) 160,222 2,202
Cattle and Crop 63,840,360 45,888,748 (48,487,628) (37,412,607)| 15,352,732 8,476,141
Miscellaneous 125,316,115| 136,674,140 |  (109,904,472) (129,115,235) 15,411,643 7,558,905
Total 2,485,803,028 | 2,276,694,922 | (1,481,138,375)| (1,295,649,804)|1,004,664,653 981,045,118

Commission Income

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Reinsurance Commission Income 340,916,113 364,680,616
Deferred Commission Income 15,861,121 10,779,329
Profit Commission 38,994,066 -
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total 395,771,300 375,459,945
Continue ...
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30

B Sagarmatha

INSURANCE COMPANY LTD.

Fig. in NPR
Investment Income
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Interest Income from Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Costs
i) Fixed Deposits with "A" Class Financial Institutions 148,091,674 135,180,453
i) Fixed Deposits with Infrastructure Banks - -
iii) Fixed Deposits with "B" Class Financial Institutions 22,134,640 46,423,042
iv) Fixed Deposits with "C" Class Financial Institutions 5,967,833 9,452,708
v) Debentures 15,311,160 12,979,992
vi) Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government) - -
vii) Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions - -
viii) Bank Deposits other than Fixed Deposit 2,668,551 7,073,280
ix) Agent Loans - -
x) Employee Loans - -
xi) Other Interest Income (to be Specified) - -
Financial Assets Measured at FVTOCI
i) Interest Income on Debentures - -
i) Dividend Income 3,233,369 7,807,028
iii) Other Interest Income (to be Specified) - -
Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL
i) Dividend Income - -
i) Other Interest Income (to be Specified) - -
Rental Income 11,970,585 12,006,650
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total 209,377,812 230,923,153
Net Gains/ (Losses) on Fair Value Changes
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

Changes in Fair Value of Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL

i)
i)
ii)

Equity Instruments
Mutual Fund
Others (to be Specified)

Changes in Fair Value on Investment Properties

Changes in Fair Value on Hedged Items in Fair Value Hedges
Changes in Fair Value on Hedging Instruments in Fair Value Hedges
Gains/(Losses) of Ineffective Portion on Cash Flow Hedges

Others (to be Specified)

Total

25" Annual Report : 41
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31 Net Realised Gains/ (Losses)

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Realised Gains/(Losses) on Derecognition of
Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL

i) Equity Instruments

i) Mutual Fund

iii) Others (to be Specified)

Realised Gains/(Losses) on Derecognition of
Financial Assets at Amortised Costs

i) Debentures

i) Bonds

iii) Others (to be Specified)

Total

32 Other Income

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Unwinding of discount on Financial Assets at Amortised Costs
i) Employee Loans

ii) Bonds

iii) Others (to be Specified)

Foreign Exchange Gains

Profit from sale of investment

Profit from disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment
Amortization of Deferred Income

Stamp Income

Others

i)  Other direct income related with insurance business
i) Miscellaneous income

Total

(937,776) 2,262,367
195,940,451 -
20,545,743 7,318,038
3,673,561 790,799
219,221,979 10,371,204

33 Gross Claims Paid

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Gross Claims Paid
Total

1,334,951,041

1,046,336,278

1,334,951,041

1,046,336,278

34 Claims Ceded

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Claims Ceded to Reinsurers
Total

(681,466,648)

(550,314,817)

(681,466,648)

(550,314,817)

62 : 25™ Annual Report
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Portfolio-wise detail of Gross Claims Paid and Claims Ceded

Sagarmatha Insurance Company Ltd.

= Sagarmatha

INSURANCE COMPANY LTD.

Fig. in NPR

Net Claims Paid before Change

Gross Claims Paid Claims Ceded in Contract Liabilities

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year

Fire 80,666,108 | 267,380,198 | (44,611,001) | (220,362,939)| 36,055,107 47,017,259
Motor 689,764,069| 20,815,833 | (176,149,462) (16,190,134)| 513,614,607 4,625,699
Marine 29,888,709 538,604,851 | (21,691,079)| (110,190,066)| 8,197,630 428,414,785
Engineering 104,800,955 151,534,010 | (98,034,841)| (143737,690)| 6,766,114 7,796,320
Micro 360,774,852 304,008 | (281,395,957) -| 79,378,895 304,008
Aviation - - - - - -
Cattle and Crop 37,056,478 | 26,652,574 | (29,645,182) (21,322,059)| 7,411,296 5,330,515
Miscellaneous 31,999,871 41,044,804 | (29,939,126) (38,511,929)| 2,060,745 2,532,875
Total 1,334,951,042  1,046,336,278 | (681,466,648) | (550,314,817) | 653,484,394| 496,021,461

Change in Contract Liabilities

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

(a) Gross Change in Contract Liabilities
Change in Contract Outstanding Claims 920,186,569 69,419,449
Change in IBNR and IBNER 99,008,261 33,834,177
Change in Margin for Adverse Deviations (MAD) - -
Change in Premium Deficiency - -
Total Gross Change in Contract Liabilities 1,019,194,830 103,253,626

(b) Change in Reinsurance Assets
Change in Reinsurance Assets Created on Outstanding Claims (796,739,252) 45,340,408
Change in Reinsurance Assets Created on IBNR and IBNER (144,268,613) -
Change in Reinsurance Assets Created on Margin for Adverse Deviations (MAD) - -
Change in Reinsurance Assets Created on Premium Deficiency - -
Total Change in Reinsurance Assets (941,007,865) 45,340,408
Net Change in Contract Liabilities 78,186,964 148,594,034

Continue ...
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Portfolio-wise detail of Net Change in Contract Liabilities

Sagarmatha Insurance Company Ltd.

Fig. in NPR

Gross Change in Contract Change in Reinsurance Net Change in Contract
Liabilities Assets Liabilities

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year | Current Year |Previous Year

Fire 324,528,950 | (107,538,118) |  (315,759,362) 124,285,063 8,769,588 16,746,945
Motor 145,013,084 | 163,493,741 (60,405,466) (33,712,221)| 84,607,618 129,781,520
Marine 40,750,989 (5,646,839) (38,094,197) (3,277,058) 2,656,792 (8,923,897)
Engineering 27,898,802 38,942,122 (38,987,226) (32,635,352) | (11,088,424) 6,306,770
Micro 450,524,637 2,322,495 | (452,375,000) (1,850,363) 2,322,495
Aviation 7,044,107 - (7,014,962) 29,145 -
Cattle and Crop 13,131,530 1,627,510 (12,674,140) (2,008,800) 457,390 (381,290)
Miscellaneous 10,302,731 10,052,715 (15,697,512) (7,311,224)|  (5,394,781) 2,741,491
Total 1,019,194,830| 103,253,626 | (941,007,865) 45,340,408 | 78,186,965 148,594,034

36 Commission Expenses

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Commission Expenses on Direct Insurance Contracts 48,052,791 42,793,455
Commission Expenses on Reinsurance Accepted 89,798 3,668,995
Deferred Commission Expenses 79,925 1,242,708
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total 48,222,514 47,705,158
Continue ...
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

37 Service Fees

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Gross Service Fees
Reinsurer's Share of Service Fees
Total

26,161,426 22,543,516
(14,935,546) |  (12,671,751)
11,225,880 9,871,765

Portfolio-wise detail of Service Fees

Gross Service Fees Reinsurer's Share of Service Fees Net Service Fees

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year

Fire 6,001,114 5,283,541 4,176,939 3,824,568 1,824,175 1,458,973
Motor 13,208,841 1,348,213 4,785,023 1,105,809 8,423,819 242,404
Marine 1,667,383 11,652,769 1,306,546 3,938,425 360,837 7,714,344
Engineering 1,940,481 1,984,395 1,835,184 1,901,518 105,297 82,877
Micro 560,182 376,006 318,569 193,406 241,613 182,600
Aviation 704,411 167 701,496 2,914 167
Cattle and Crop 832,678 479,975 666,142 383,980 166,536 95,995
Miscellaneous 1,246,336 1,418,450 1,145,647 1,324,045 100,689 94,405
Total 26,161,426 22,543,516 14,935,546 12,671,751 11,225,879 9,871,765

38 Employee Benefits Expenses

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Salaries 93,339,039 86,731,509
Allowances 58,515,123 54,846,486
Defined Benefit Plans

i) Gratuity (739,490) 6,482,448
ii) Others (to be Specified) - -
Defined Contribution Plans

i) Provident Fund 4,129,424 5,877,033
i) Others (Social Security Fund) 8,400,702 4,760,970
Leave Encashment 10,781,338 9,426,321
Termination Benefits - -
Festival Allowances 6,977,055 6,742,256
Training Expenses 103,360 305,350
Uniform Expenses 3,543,650 5,650
Medical Expenses 7,140,898 6,847,187
Staff Insurance Expenses 507,370 489,560
Staff Welfare - -
Bonus 69,699,078 54,102,996
Others

i) Incentive - -
i) Overtime Expenses - -
iii) Wages to Temporary Staffs 2,904,545 5,436,756
Total 265,302,092 242,054,522
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39 Depreciation and Amortization Expenses
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Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer Note 5)
Depreciation on Investment Properties (Refer Note 6)
Amortization of Intangible Assets (Refer Note 4)

Total

14,215,535 16,513,106
771,711 692,562
14,987,246 17,205,668

40 Impairment Losses

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Impairment Losses on Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment
Properties and Intangible Assets

i) Property, Plant and Equipment

i) Investment Properties

i) Intangible Assets

Impairment Losses on Financial Assets
i) Investments

i) Loans

iii) Other Financial Assets

iv) Cash and Cash Equivalents

v) Others (to be Specified)

Impairment Losses on Other Assets
i) Reinsurance Assets

i) Insurance Receivables

iii) Lease Receivables

iv) Others (to be Specified)

Total

18,799,542

18,799,542

41 Other Expenses

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Rent Expenses 18,414,114 18,261,385
Electricity and Water 3,654,151 3,569,849
Repair & Maintenance
i) Buildings - -
i) Vehicles 1,444,635 1,185,337
iiiy Office Equipments 2,190,958 884,384
iv) Others (other assets) - -
Telephone & Communication 8,951,406 8,373,549
Printing & Stationary 9,882,911 8,078,151
Office Consumable Expenses 6,705,018 7,305,177
Continue ...
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Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Travelling Expenses

i) Domestic

i) Foreign

Agent Training

Other Agent Expenses

Insurance Premium

Security Expenses

Legal and Consulting Expenses
Newspapers, Books and Periodicals
Advertisement & Promotion Expenses
Business Promotion

Guest Entertainment

Gift and Donations

Board Meeting Fees and Expenses
i) Meeting Allowances
i) Other Allowances

Other Committee/ Sub-committee Expenses
i) Meeting Allowances

i) Other Allowances

General Meeting Expenses

Audit Related Expenses
i) Statutory Audit

i) TaxAudit

iii) Long Form Audit Report
iv) Other Fees

v) Internal Audit

vi) Others (Audit expense)
Bank Charges

Fee and Charges

Postage Charges

Foreign Exchange Losses

Others

i)  Other direct expense related with insurance business
i) Revenue Stamp

iii) Office expense

iv) Computer expense

v) VAT expense

vi) Penalty

vii) Seminar expense

viii) Subscription and membership fees
ix) Miscellaneous expense

x) SMS credit expense

xi) Low Cost Durable Item

xii) Generator expense

Total

9,415,972 7,596,430
- 709,774

13,020 107,097
669,043 947,144
720,000 684,000
1,507,201 1,581,804
198,943 153,411
5,723,185 4,692,245
150,129 2,285,415
7,415,379 6,764,704
3,345,500 1,603,500
1,502,000 598,000
190,548 150,166
392,000 424,000
11,095 64,389
88,272 -
300,000 300,000
40,000 40,000
340,000 340,000
487,159 349,211
1,023,829 642,117
1,363,028 1,222,581
8,088,159 5,748,450
2,360,847 2,020,560
2,472,441 817,351
4,020,250 2,746,815
1,118,887 616,255
32,214 74,150
566,844 638,010
656,700 734,966
941,099 905,533
106,396,937 93,215,910
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42 Finance Cost

43
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Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Unwinding of discount on Provisions

Unwinding of discount on Financial Liabilities at Amortised Costs
Interest Expenses - Bonds

Interest Expenses - Debentures

Interest Expenses - Term Loans

Interest Expenses - Leases

Interest expenses - Overdraft Loans

Others (to be Specified)

Total

Income Tax Expense

(a) Income Tax Expense

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Current Tax

i) Income Tax Expenses for the Year 188,291,046 165,072,791
i) Income Tax Relating to Prior Periods - -
Deferred Tax For The Year

i)  Originating and reversal of temporary differences (3,286,579) (6,007,848)
ii) Changes in tax rate - -
iii) Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses - -
iv) Write-down or reversal - -
v) Others (to be Specified) - -
Income Tax Expense 185,004,467 159,064,943
(b) Reconciliation of Taxable Profit & Accounting Profit

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Accounting Profit Before Tax 632,430,175 514,656,254
Applicable Tax Rate 30% 30%
Tax at the applicable rate on Accounting Profit 189,729,053 154,396,876
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose

i)  Non deuctible expenes in Tax 22,434,757 19,123,052
i) Decuctible expensses in Tax (21,370,030) (14,017,140)
Less: Tax effect on exempt income and additional deduction

i) Dividend Income (970,011) (2,342,108)
i) - -
Less: Adjustments to Current Tax for Prior Periods

i) - -
ii) - -
Add/ (Less): Others (to be Specified) - -
i)  NFRS Profit & NAS Profit Difference 3,787,149 (630,283)
i) Originating and reversal of temporary differences (3,286,579) (6,007,848)
Income Tax Expense 190,324,339 150,522,549
Effective Tax Rate 30.09% 29.25%
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Fig. in NPR
44 Employee Retirement Benefits

a) Post Employment Benefit - Defined Contribution Plans
For the year ended Ashad31,2078 ( Jul15, 2021) the company has recognised an amount of NPR. 12,530,126.00
as an expenses under the defined contribution plans in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

b) Post Employment Benefit - Defined Benefit Plans
For Defined Benefit Plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method,

with Actuarial Valuations being carried out.

c) Total Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Current service cost 10,942,328 10,299,057 -

Past service cost -

Net interest cost (a-b) 748,258 922,394 -

a. Interest expense on defined benefit obligation (DBO) 7,461,613 7,033,131 -

b. Interest (income) on plan assets 6,713,355 6,110,737 -

Defined benefit cost included in Statement of

Profit or Loss 11,690,586 11,221,451 -

d) Remeasurement effects recognised in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
a. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to financial
assumption changes in DBO 11,058,658 (6,776,923) -
b. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to experience on DBO -
¢. Return on plan assets (greater)/ less than discount rate (6,713,355) (6,110,737) -
Total actuarial (gain)/ loss included in OCI 4,345,303 (12,887,660) -

e) Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Cost recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss 11,690,586 11,221,451 -
Remeasurements effects recognised in OCI 4,345,303 (12,887,660) -
Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income 16,035,889 (1,666,209) -
Continue ...
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f) Change in Defined Benefit Obligation
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Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year

Service cost

Interest cost

Benefit payments from plan assets

Actuarial (gain)/ loss - financial assumptions
Actuarial (gain)/ Loss - experience

Defined Benefit Obligation as at Year End

Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
87,660,696 84,559,408 - -
10,942,328 10,299,057 - -

7,461,613 7,033,131 - -

(13,218,025) (1,343,240) - -

4,345,303 (12,887,660) - -
97,191,915 87,660,696 -

dg) Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets

Particulars

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Fair value of plan assets at end of prior year
Expected return on plan assets

Employer contributions

Participant contributions

Benefit payments from plan assets

Transfer in/ transfer out

Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets

Fair value of Plan Assets as at Year End

Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
74,592,837 67,897,074 - -
6,713,355 6,110,737 - -
10,093,612 8,039,003 - -
(13,218,025) (1,343,240) - -
(6,713,355) (6,110,737) - -
71,468,424 74,592,837 - -

h) Net Defined Benefit Liability/ (Asset)

Particulars

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Defined Benefit Obligation

Fair Value of Plan Assets
Liability/ (Asset) Recognised in
Statement of Financial Position

97,191,915
(71,468,424)

87,660,696
(74,592,837)

25,723,491

13,067,859

i) Expected Company Contributions for the Next Year

Particulars

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Expected company contributions for
the next year

Continue ...
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j) Reconciliation of amounts in Statement of Financial Position

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Net defined benefit liability/(asset) at prior year end
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit or Loss
Total remeasurements included in OCI

Acquisition/ divestment

Employer contributions

Net defined benefit liability/ (asset)

13,067,860 16,662,335 -
11,690,586 11,221,451 -
11,058,658 (6,776,923) -

(10,093,612) (8,039,003) -
25,723,492 13,067,860

k) Reconciliation of Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

Particulars

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss, beginning of period
Total remeasurements included in OCI
Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss

(40,661,466)
(11,058,658)

(47,438,389)
6,776,923

(51,720,124)

(40,661,466)

1) Current/Non - Current Liability

Particulars

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Liability
Non - Current Liability(Net) of Plan Assets
Total

25,723,492

13,067,859

25,723,492

13,067,859

m) Expected Future Benefit Payments

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Within 1 year 11,441,518 9,507,770 - -
Between 1-2 years 14,096,215 9,741,917 - -
Between 2-5 years 39,706,407 43,908,711 - -
From 6 to 10 50,413,364 41,472,828 - -
Total 115,657,504 104,631,226 - -

: 25™ Annual Report
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Fig. in NPR
n) Plan assets
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Particulars (% Invested) | (% Invested) | (% Invested) (% Invested)
Government Securities - - - -

Corporate Bonds (including Public Sector bonds) - - - -
Mutual Funds - - - -

Deposits = - - R
Cash and bank balances = - - R
Retirement Fund 100 100 - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - _
Total 100 100 - -

o) Sensitivity Analysis

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 0.5%
Increase in Discount Rate - 85,356,631 - -
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 0.5%
Decrease in Discount Rate - 90,085,807 - -

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 0.5%
Increase in Salary Escalation Rate - 90,052,037 - -
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 0.5%
Decrease in Salary Escalation Rate - 85,366,890 - -

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1%
Increase in Attrition Rate = - .
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1%
Decrease in Attrition Rate = - - .

p) Assumptions

Particulars Employee Benefit Plan | Any Other Funded Liability

Discount Rate 9%
Escalation Rate (Rate of Increase in Compensation Levels) 10%
Attrition Rate (Employee Turnover) 12%
Mortality Rate During Employment Nepali Assured Lives Mortality (2009)
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Fig. in NPR
45 Insurance Risk

Insurance risk includes the risk of incurring higher claims costs than expected owing to the random nature of claims,
frequency and severity and the risk of change in the legal or economic conditions of insurance or reinsurance cover.
This may result in the insurer having either received too little premium for the risks it has agreed to underwrite and
hence has not enough funds to invest and pay claims, or that claims are in excess of those expected.

The Company seeks to minimise insurance risk through a formalised reinsurance arrangement with an appropriate
mix and spread of business based on its overall strategy. This is complemented by observing formalised risk
management policies.

The Company considers insurance risk to be a combination of the following components of risks:
a) Product development

) Pricing

) Underwriting

)

)

o O T

Reinsurance
Claims Handling
f) Reserving

D

a) Product development:
The Company principally issues the following types of Non-Life Insurance contracts:
- Fire
- Motor
- Marine
- Engineering
- Micro
- Aviation
- Cattle and Crop
- Miscellaneous

The significant risks arising under the Non-Life Insurance portfolio emanates from changes in the climate leading
to natural disasters, behavioral trends of people due to changing life styles, the steady escalation of costs in
respect of spares in the auto industry's.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by the diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts and
geographical areas. The variability of risks is improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting
strategies, which are designed to ensure that risks are diversified in terms of type of risk and level of insured
benefits.

Furthermore, strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims, regular detailed review of claims
handling procedures and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent claims are put in place to reduce the risk
exposure of the Company. The Company further enforces a policy of actively managing and promptly pursuing
claims, in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developments that can negatively impact the
business.

Continue ...
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Pricing:

The pricing of an insurance product involves the estimation of claims, operational and financing costs and the
income arising from investing the premium received. The pricing process typically comprises collecting data on
the underlying risks to be covered, determining the pricing assumptions and the base rate, setting the final premium
rate, and monitoring the review of the appropriateness of pricing.

The Company collects adequate data to validate the reasonableness of the underlying assumptions used for
pricing. The base rate represents the amount required to meet the value of anticipated benefits, expenses, and
margins for risks and profit. Data primarily relates to the company's own historical experience and that of the
industry where relevant. These may be supplemented by other internal and external data, and could include trends
observed in claims costs and expenses.

Pricing is done by modelling all identified risks, using appropriate methodologies depending on the complexity of
the risks and available data. Adequate buffers are kept in the premiums to cushion against the risk that actual
experience may turn out to be worse than expected.

Underwriting:
The Company’s underwriting process is governed by the internal underwriting procedures. Some of the actions
undertaken to mitigate underwriting risks are detailed below:

i) Investments are made on the training and development of underwriting and claims management staff, including
those attached to the distribution network,

i) Application of Four-Eye principle on underwriting process,

iii) Pre-underwriting inspections are made on new business over a predetermined threshold to evaluate risk prior
to acceptance,

iv) Post-underwriting reviews are conducted to ensure that set guidelines have been observed,

v) Adequate reinsurance arrangements are in place and reviews are undertaken to ensure the adequacy of these
covers.

Reinsurance

The Company purchases reinsurance as part of its risks mitigation programme. Premium ceded to the reinsurers
is in accordance with the terms of the programmes already agreed based on the risks written by the insurance
companies. Recoveries from reinsurers on claims are based on the cession made in respect of each risk and is
estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provisions made for the loss. Although we mitigate
our exposures through prudent reinsurance arrangements, the obligation to meet claims emanating from policy
holders rests with the Company. Default of reinsurers does not negate this obligation and in that respect the
Company carries a credit risk up to the extent ceded to each reinsurer.

Claims handling:

Some of the actions undertaken to mitigate claims risks is detailed below:

i) Claims are assessed immediately,

ii) Assessments are carried out by in-house as well as independent assessors / loss adjustors working throughout,

iii) The service of a qualified independent actuary is obtained annually to assess the adequacy of reserves,

iv) Post-underwriting reviews are conducted to ensure that set guidelines have been observed,

v) Adequate reinsurance arrangements are in place and reviews are undertaken to ensure the adequacy of these
covers.

Sensitivities
The non-life insurance claim liabilities are sensitive to the key assumption as mentioned in the table below.

The following analysis is performend for resonably possible movement in key assumption with all other assumptios
held constant, showing the impact on gross and net liabilities, profit before tax and profit after tax. The correlation
of assumption will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate claims liabilities, but to demonstrate the
impact due to change in assumptions, assumptions had to be changed on an individual basis.

Continue ...
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Fig. in NPR
46 Fair Value Measurements

(i) Financial Instruments by Category & Hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the Fair Values of the Financial Instruments
that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at Amortised Cost and for which Fair Values
are disclosed in the Financial Statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining Fair Value, the Company has classified
its financial instruments into Three Levels prescribed as per applicable NFRS.

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Level FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost | FVTPL FVOCI | Amortised Cost
Investments
i) Investment in Equity Instruments 1 - 402,640,234 - - | 322,398,463 -
ii) Investment in Mutual Funds 1 - 60,353,078 - - 40,652,114 -

iii) Investment in Preference Shares of
Bank and Financial Institutions - - - - - -
iv) Investment in Debentures 3 - - 186,458,000 - - 166,923,000
v) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/
NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government) - - - - -

vi) Fixed Deposits 3 - - 2,321,600,000 - -| 2,058,750,000
vii) Others (to be specified) 3 - - - - -

Loans - - - - -

Other Financial Assets 3 - - 154,634,695 - - 72,292,913
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 - - 490,056,970 - - 616,093,464
Total Financial Assets - 462,993,312 3,152,749,665 -| 363,050,577 | 2,914,059,377
Borrowings

Other Financial Liabilities 3 - - 330,768,313 -| 544,422,498 -
Total Financial Liabilities - - 330,768,313 -| 544,422,498 -

Level 1 : Level 1 Hierarchy includes Financial Instruments measured using Quoted Prices.

Level 2 : Fair Value of Financial Instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation
techniques which maximises the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to determine Fair Value of an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3 : If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included
in Level 3.

There is no transfer of Financial Instruments between different levels as mentioned above during the year.

(ii) Valuation Technique Used to Determine Fair Value
a) Use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments
b) Fair Value of remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis

(iii) Valuation Process
The finance and accounts department of the Company performs the valuation of financial assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes. Valuation processes and results are reviewed at least once in a year.

The main level 3 inputs are derived and evaluated as follows:

a) Discount rate is arrived at considering the internal and external factors.

b) Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current, and the impact of the discounting
is material. Continue ...
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(iv) Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost

B Sagarmatha

INSURANCE COMPANY LTD.

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Carrying Amount

Fair Value

Carrying Amount

Fair Value

Investments

i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and
Financial Institutions

i) Investment in Debentures

iii) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/
NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government)

iv) Fixed Deposit

v) Others (to be Specified)

Loans

i) Loan to Associates

ii) Loan to Employees

iv) Loan to Agents

v) Others (to be Specified)

Other Financial Assets including Cash
Total Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

Borrowings

i) Bonds

ii) Debentures

iii) Term Loans - Bank and Financial Institution
iv) Bank Overdrafts

v) Others (to be Specified)

Other Financial Liabilities

Total Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost

186,458,000

2,321,600,000

644,691,665

186,458,000

2,321,600,000

644,691,665

166,923,000

2,058,750,000

72,292,913

166,923,000

2,058,750,000

72,292,913

186,458,000

186,458,000

166,923,000

166,923,000

330,768,313

330,768,313

544,422,498

544,422,498

330,768,313

330,768,313

544,422,498

544,422,498

The fair values of the above financial instruments measured at amortised cost are calculated based on cash flows

discounted using current discount rate.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values due to their

short-term nature.

47 Financial Risk Management

The Company's activities expose it to Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk & Market Risk.

i) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss as a result of the default or failure of third parties to meet their payment
obligations to the Company. Thus, for an insurance contract, credit risk includes the risk that an insurer incurs a
financial loss because a reinsurer defaults on its obligations under the reinsurance contract.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Company’s exposure to credit risk:

a) Company has credit risk policy which sets out the assessment and determination of what constitutes credit
risk for the Company. Compliance with the policy is monitored and exposures/ breaches are reported to the
Company’s risk committee. The policy is regularly reviewed for pertinence and for changes in the risk

environment.

Continue...
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Fig. in NPR

b) Reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have a good credit rating and concentration of risk is avoided
by entering into agreement with more than one party. At each reporting date, management performs an
assessment of creditworthiness of reinsurers and updates the reinsurance purchase strategy, ascertaining
suitable allowance for impairment.

c) The company deals with only creditworthy counterparties and obtains sufficient collateral where appropriate,
as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashad 31, 2078

Gross Expected | Expected | Carrying

) Asset Carrying [Probability of| Credit |Amount After
Particulars Group Amount Default Losses Provision

Credit Risk has not significantly increased since initial recognition Ir_noesassilrlgévg?ﬁ% Fixed Deposit 2,321,600,000 - -1 2,321,600,000

months expected Debenture 186,458,000 - - 186,458,000

Other Financial assets credit losses 154,634,695 - -| 154,634,695

Credit Risk has significantly increased and not credit impaired Loss allowance

Credit Risk has significantly increased and credit impaired measured at life- |
time expected

credit losses

Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashad 31, 2077

Gross Expected | Expected | Carrying

) Asset Carrying |Probability of| Credit |Amount After
Particulars Group Amount Default Losses | Provision
Credit Risk has not significantly increased since initial recognition Lﬁi‘iﬂ'ﬁé’é”i?ﬁ% Fixed Deposit 2,058,750,000 - -| 2,058,750,000
months expected Debenture 186,458,000 - - 186,458,000
credit losses Other Financial assets| 72,292,913 - -l 72,292,913
Credit Risk has significantly increased and not credit impaired Loss allowance - - -
Credit Risk has significantly increased and credit impaired measured at life-
Recongiliation of Loss Allowance Provision time expected

credit losses

Reconciliation of Loss Allowance Provision

Measured at life-time expected credit losses

Credit Risk has Credit Risk has
_ Measured at 12 months| significantly increased| significantly increased
Particulars expected credit losses |and not credit impaired| and credit impaired

Loss Allowance on Ashadh 31, 2077 - . _
Changes in loss allowances - - -
Write-offs - - .
Recoveries - - -
Loss Allowance on Ashadh 31, 2078 - R .

ii) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. In respect of catastrophic events there is also a
liquidity risk associated with the timing differences between gross cash out—flows and expected reinsurance
recoveries.

Continue...
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Maturity of Financial Liabilities/Maturity of Financial Assets

The table below summarises the Company's Financial Liabilities into Relevant Maturity Groupings based on their
Contractual Maturities for all Financial Liabilities/Financial Assets.

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Upto 1 Year | 1Yearto5Year | Morethan5Year | Upto1Year | 1Yearto5Year | More than 5 Year
Borrowings - - - B,
Other Financial Liabilities 330,768,313 - - 544,422,498
Other Financial Assets 641,611,465 - - 492,908,042

iii) Market Risk
al) Foreign Currency Risk Exposure

Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Company to experience volatility in the value of its assets,
liabilities and solvency and to suffer actual financial losses as a result of changes in value between the
currencies of its assets and liabilities and its reporting currency. The Company does not maintain foreign
currency denominated assets in its investment portfolios and as such is not exposed to foreign exchange
risk related to investments.

Alternative note for Foreign Currency Risk Exposure (where there is Foreign Currency Risk)

Operation of the Company has exposed it to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions,
with respect to the USD and Currency A. The risk is measured through a forecast of highly probable foreign
currency cash flows. The objective of the hedges is to minimise the volatility of the NPR cash flows of highly
probable forecast transactions.

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in NPR, are
as follows:

Current Year Previous Year

Particulars usD Currency A usD Currency A

Investments
Loans = - - -
Insurance Recievable = = - -
Other Financial Asssets = - - -

Less: Derivative Assets
i) Foreign exchange forward contracts - Sell Foreign Currency - - - -
ii) Foreign exchange option contracts - Sell Foreign Currency - - - -
Net Exposure to Foreign Currency Risk/ (Assets) - - - -

Insurance Payables - 5 - -
Other Financial Liabilities - 5 - -

Less: Derivative Liabilities
i) Foreign exchange forward contracts - Buy Foreign Currency - = - -
ii) Foreign exchange option contracts - Buy Foreign Currency - - - -
Net Exposure to Foreign Currency Risk/ (Liabilities) - - - -

Continue...
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a2) Foreign Currency Risk - Sensitivity
If Company has Forex denominated liability- thi ssheet needs to be updated

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated
financial instruments and the impact on the other components of equity arising from foreign forward exchange
contracts, foreign exchange option contracts designated as cash flow hedges

Impact on profit after tax Impact on other component of equity
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
USD sensitivity
USD sensitivity - - - -

NPR/ USD - Increases by 10% * - - = -
NPR/ USD - Decreases by 10% * - - = -

Currency A sensitivity
NPR/ Currency A - Increases by 10% * = - = -
NPR/ Currency A - Decreases by 10% * = - = -

* Holding all other variable constant

b1) Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates.

b2) Interest Rate Sensitivity
Profit or Loss is sensitive to changes in Interest Rate for Borrowings. A change in Market Interest Level by 1%
which is reasonably possible based on Management's Assessment would have the following effect on the Profit
After Tax.

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

Interest Rate - Increase By 1%* - -
Interest Rate - Decrease By 1%* - -

* Holding all other Variable Constant

c1) Equity Price Risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in equity prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or by factors affecting
all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company has invested in equity securities and the exposure is equity securities price risk from investments
held by the Company and classified in the statement of financial position as fair value through OCI/ fair value
through profit or loss.

c2) Sensitivity
The table below summarises the impact of increase/decrease of the index in the Company’s equity and impact
on OCI/ profit or loss for the period. The analysis is based on the assumption that the equity index had increased/
decreased by 1% with all other variables held constant, and that all the Company's equity instruments moved
in line with the index.

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

Equity Index - Increase By 1% = -
Equity Index - Decrease By 1% = -
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Fig. in NPR
Operational Risk

Operational Risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss, or damaged reputation resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems or external events. When controls fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage
to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or can lead to financial loss. The Company cannot expect to
eliminate all operational risks, but by initiating a rigorous control framework and by monitoring and responding to
potential risks, the Company is able to manage the risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties, access
controls, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes, including the use
of internal audit. Business risks such as changes in environment, technology and the industry are monitored through
the Company’s strategic planning and budgeting process.

Capital Management

The Company's objectives when managing Capital are to:

a) Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, and

b) Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

Regulatory minimum paid up capital

Non-Life insurance companies were required by the Directive issued by Beema Samiti to attain a stipulated minimum
paid up capital of NPR 1 billion by mid-July 2018. As on the reporting date, the company's paid up capital is NPR
1,11,13,57,500

Dividend

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

(i) Dividends recognised
Final dividend for the year ended Ashad 31, 2078 of NPR Nil./-
(Ashad 31, 2077 - NPR Nil./-) per fully paid share (115,931,073)
(115,931,073) -
(ii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period
In addition to above dividends, since the year end the directors have
recomeded the payment of a final dividend of NFRS 21056/-(ie:20%
bonus share and 1.0526% cash dividend) per fully paid wquity share.
his proposed dividend is subject to approval from shareholders in AGM 233,970,000 | (115,931,073)
233,970,000 | (115,931,073)
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Earnings Per Share (EPS)

a) Basic Earnings Per Share

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Profit For the Year

Less: Dividend on Preference Shares

Adjusted profit attributable to ordinary share holders

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the
Year For Basic Earning per Share

Basic Earnings Per Share

447,425,708 384,065,959
447,425,708 384,065,959
11,113,575 11,113,575
40.26 34.56

b) Diluted Earnings Per Share

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Adjusted profit attributable to ordinary share holders

Add: Interest saving on Convertible Bonds

Profit For the Year used for Calculating Diluted Earning per Share

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the Year For
Basic Earning per Share

Adjustments for calculation of Diluted Earning per Share:

i) Dilutive Shares

i) Options

iii) Convertible Bonds

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the Year for
Diluted Earning Per Share

Nominal Value of Equity Shares

Diluted Earnings Per Share

447,425,708 384,065,959
447,425,708 384,065,959
11,113,575 11,113,575
11,113,575 11,113,575
100 100

40.26 34.56

Segmental Information

Segment information is presented in respect of the Company's business segments. Management of the Company
has identified portfolio as business segment and the Company's internal reporting structure is also based on portfolio.
Performance is measured based on segment profit as management believes that it is most relevant in evaluating the

results of segment relative to other entities that operate within these industries.

Segment asset is disclosed below based on total of all asset for each business segment.

The Company operates predominantly in Nepal and accordingly, the Management of the Company is of the view that
the financial information by geographical segments of the Company’s operation is not necessary to be presented.

Business Segments of the Company’s are:

i) Fire

i) Motor

iii) Marine

iv) Engineering
v) Micro

vi) Aviation

vii) Cattle and Crop
viii) Miscellaneous
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Sagarmatha Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

c) Reconciliation of Segmental Profit with Statement of Profit or Loss

B Sagarmatha

INSURANCE COMPANY LTD.

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Segmental Profit

Less: Depreciation and Amortization

Less: Non-cash expenses other than Depreciation and Amortization
Less: Unallocable Corporate Expenditures

799,713,628
(14,987,246)
(171,276,592)
(185,004,467)

765,415,314

(17,205,668)
(324,899,228)
(159,064,943)

Add: Unallocable Other Income 18,980,384 119,820,485
Less: Finance Cost

Profit Before Tax 447,425,707 384,065,960
d) Reconciliation of Assets

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Segment Assets 1,848,841,500 895,417,377
Intangible Assets - -
Property, Plant and Equipment 69,463,780 75,544,712
Investment Properties 114,667,871 115,439,584
Deferred Tax Assets 91,644,776 92,643,339

Investments

Loans

Current Tax Assets (Net)
Other Assets

Total Assets

2,971,051,312

53,808,949
1,299,863,779

2,5688,723,577

31,166,226
1,258,382,361

6,449,341,967

5,057,317,176

e) Reconciliation of Liabilities

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Segment Liabilities 3,132,942,392 | 1,983,408,009
Provisions 137,105,125 124,601,322
Deferred Tax Liabilities - -
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) - -
Other Financial Liabilities 129,364,586 130,702,865
Other Liabilities 425,787,305 640,763,219

Total Liabilities

3,825,199,408

2,879,475,415
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Sagarmatha Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

52 Related Party Disclosure

(a) Identify Related Parties
Holding Company: None
Subsidiaries: None
Associates: None
Fellow Subsidiaries: None
Key Management Personnel: BOD/CEO/DCEO/AGM

Name of key management personnel Position
Ram Krishna Manandhar Chairman
Ajit R. Gunawardena Director
Lokmanya Golchha Director
Siddhartha Mani Rajdhandari Director

Rajendra Man Serchan
Gajendra lal Shrestha
Shobha Shrestha
Padma Jyoti

Patrick Alwis

Chunky Chhetri

Kabiraj Poudel

Vijay Shrestha

Public Director

Public Director
Independent Director
Alternate Director
Alternate Director
Chief Executive Officer
AGM

AGM

(b) Key Management Personnel Compensation

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
Other long-term benefits
Termination benefits

Total

19,626,087

12,270,963

19,626,087

12,270,963

Payment to Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Annual salary and allowances
Performance based allowances

i) Employee Bonus

ii) Benefits as per prevailing provisions
iii) Incentives

Insurance related benefits

i) Life Insurance

ii) Accident Insurance

iii) Health Insurance (including family members)
Total

5,250,000

2,687,025

4,734,288

7,937,025

4,734,288
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Sagarmatha Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)
Fig. in NPR

(c) Related Party Transactions

Holding Fellow Key Managerial
Particulars Company | Subsidiaries | Associates | Subsidiaries Personnel Total

Premium Earned
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021) - - -
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - -
Commission Income
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021) - - -
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - -
Rental Income
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021) - - -
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - -
Interest Income
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021) - - -
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - -
Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021) - - -
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - -
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021) - - -
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - -
Premium Paid
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021) - - -
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - -
Commission Expenses
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021) - - -
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - -
Dividend
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021) - - -
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - -
Meeting Fees
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021) -
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) -
Allowances to Directors
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021) -
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) -
Others (to be specified)
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021) - - -
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - -

1,222,000 1,222,000
1,022,000 1,022,000

672,000 672,000
696,000 696,000

(d) Related Party Balances

Holding Fellow | Key Managerial
Particulars Company | Subsidiaries | Associates | Subsidiaries Personnel Total

Receivables including Reinsurance Receivables
As at Ashad 31,2078 (July 15, 2021) - - - - -
As at Ashad 31,2077 (July 16, 2019) - - - - -
Other Receivables (to be Specified)
As at Ashad 31,2078 (July 15, 2021) - - - - -
As at Ashad 31,2077 (July 16, 2019) - - - - -
Payables including Reinsurance Payables
As at Ashad 31,2078 (July 15, 2021) - - - - -
As at Ashad 31,2077 (July 16, 2019) - - - - -
Other Payables (to be Specified)
As at Ashad 31,2078 (July 15, 2021) - - - - -
As at Ashad 31,2077 (July 16, 2019) - - - - -
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Sagarmatha Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

53 Leases
(a) Leases as Lessee

(i) Operating Leases:

Fig. in NPR

The Company has various operating leases ranging from 2 years to 10 years for rental. Non-cancellable periods
range from 1 months to 3 months. The leases are renewable by mutual consent and contain escalation clause.
Rental expenses for operating leases recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year is NPR

1,84,14,114( Ashad 31,2078), NPR 17,187,183 (Ashad.31, 2077)..

Disclosure in respect of Non-cancellable lease is as given below

Future Minimum Lease Payments

Current Year

Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year
i) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
iii) Later than 5 years

131,695
37,766,034
82,045,778

18,003,624
62,140,981
76,647,306

(ii) Finance Lease:

The Company holds assets under finance leases. Future minimum lease payments and lease liability at the

end of the year is given below:

Future Minimum Lease Payments

Current Year

Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year

i) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
iiiy Later than 5 years

Total Future Minimum Lease Payments
Less: Effect of Discounting

Finance lease liability recognised

(b) Leases as Lessor

(i) Operating Lease:

The Company has leased out certain office spaces that are renewable on a periodic basis. Rental income
received during the year in respect of operating lease is NPR 11970585 Details of assets given on operating

lease as at year end are as below.

Disclosure in respect of Non-cancellable lease is as given below

Future Minimum Lease Income Current Year| Previous Year
i) Not Later than 1 year 11,970,585 11,947,431
i) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - 720,000
iii) Later than 5 years = -
Continue...
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Sagarmatha Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

54

55

56

57

58

(ii) Finance Lease:

B Sagarmatha

INSURANCE COMPANY LTD.

Fig. in NPR

The Company has given assets under finance leases. At the year end receivables under finance lease

agreements fall due as follows:

Current Year Previous Year

Particulars Gross Unearned Gross Unearned

Investment | Finance Income | Net Investment| Investment |Finance Income| Net Investment
i) Not Later than 1 year
ii) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
iii) Later than 5 years
Total
Capital Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

Intangible Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment
Investment Properties

Total

Contingent Liabilities

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Claims against Company not acknowledged as debts

a) Income Tax 11,665,293 11,665,293
b) Indirect Taxes 1,299,840 1,299,840
c) Other (to be Specified) - -
Total 12,965,133 12,965,133

Events occuring after Balance Sheet

There is no any significant event after balance sheet date having material effect.

Assets Pledged as Security (only if pledged)

The carrying amount of assets pledged as security are:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Reinsurance Receivables
Investments in equity

Fixed Deposits

Property, plant and equipment
Others (to be Specified)

Total

Miscellaneous

(i) All amounts are in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated.
(ii) All figures are in the Nearest Rupee & Rounded off.
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Sagarmatha Insurance Company Ltd.

Annexure |l
Minimum Disclosure in Management Report
(Year Ended Upto Ashad 31, 2078)

Information related to Non Life Insurer

Under this title following matters shall be disclosed

1.

2
3
4,
5

Date of establishment : 2051/10/17

Insurer licence date : 2053/03/12

Insurance business type, nature : Non Life Insurance
Date of commencement of business : 2053/04/02

Other matters which insurer wish to include : There are 76 branches all over the Nepal.

Insurer's Board of Directors shall approve following matters

Validity of license issued by Beema Samiti to carry insurance business
The license issued by Beema Samiti to carry insurance business is valid

Tax, service charges, fine and penalties to be paid under laws & regulation whether paid or not
Tax,service chargesare paid to the concerned authority

Share structure of the insurer, changes if any in line with prevailing laws & regulation
There is no any change in share structure of the company.

. Whether solvency ratio as prescribed by Beema Samiti is maintained or not

Solvency ratio as prescribed by Beema Samiti is maintained.

a) Statement regarding assets that financial amount contained in SOFP are not overstated than it's fair value.

The assets of the company that financial amount contained in SOFP are not overstated.

b) Measurement basis of the assets recognized in financial statements.

The measurement basis of the assets recognized in financial statements are mentioned in the Notes to the

Financial Statements

Declaration on investment made by insurer that are in line with prevailing laws. If not reason to be disclosed.
Investment made by insurance in line with prevailing laws except government bonds. In case government bonds,

it is less than prescribed limit due to non availability of government bonds in the markert

Number of claim settled within the year and outstanding claim number and time frame to settle the

outstanding claim.

10068 number of claim file are settled and 3,427 number of claim file are still outstanding within the year and the

claim oustanding file shall be settled within 35 days upon receiving survey report.

Declaration on compliance with the provision of Insurance Act 2049, Insurance Regulation 2049, Company
Act 2063, NFRSs and other prevailing laws & regulation to which insurer shall adhere to and any non

compliance with reasons thereof.
The company has made compliance withsuch legal and regulatory provision.
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12,

13.

14.

15.

16.
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Declaration that the appropriate accounting policy has been consistently adopted.
The appropriate accounting policy has been consistently adopted based on Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRS)

Declaration on Financial Statements as at Reporting Date that the insurer's Financial Position and Financial
Performance are presented true & fairly.
The company's Financial Position and Financial Performance as on date are presented true & fair.

Declaration that Board of Directors have implemented adequate and appropriate provision to safeguard
the assets and for identification and mitigation against losses due to fraud, embezzlement and irregularities.
The company has implemented adequate and appropriate provision like physical verification of assets on regular
interval to safeguard the assets and for identification and mitigation against losses due to fraud, embezzlement
and irregularities.

Declaration that Financial Statements have been prepared based on going concern basis.
The company has prepared Financial Statement based on going concern basis.

Declaration that the internal control system is commensurate with the size, nature & volume of the insurer's
business.
The internal control system of the company is effective & adequate based on volume of the business

Declaration that the insurer has not conducted any transactions contrary to Insurance Act, 2049, Companies
Act, 2063, related regulations and directions with any person, firm, company and insurer's director or with
any entity in which insurer's director has interest.

The company has not conducted any such transactions.

Disclosure on any penalties, levied by Beema Samiti for the particular financial year.
There is no any such penalties.

Other disclosure which is deemed appropriate by management
The company has maintained all reseve & fund as per the provision of Insurance Act and Rules.
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foctar faaruterin wraferm wie dn sffvee

AIRATAT ScAR A DUl forfdies
AT 24

(@) ufe=m:

FIRHTIT T FFAT [df9ee (Sagarmatha Insurance Company Limited) (I& Tfe; “e¥q=1” afuepr) FqTerdr Tfud
fafa afacs o Foa ST FFT 81 | a9 AT BT THT, BSHISHAT T8l & | AT HFET Jarel faaras
fafraa awie fafweenr qeiea AUl Ta1 THFHFH drAT qiafqare ST T4, 0% F1 I6T 90 H ITIHT 3 a9
AT foATEet, 0% ®1 IH & B IUMAH () THISTH [Aoiad S| saaqrg g==ard= T (A 043 I AT006
R ITAATE FTHT I THT 8l |

aifdF a¥ 2088 T ATAT § TT G 00z WA ATHE 39 Td TFFH! Foie [ fqawoes a9 FEaHre Gdras
el Tawe fAfa R0%s /99 /9% T 9Iid THT a7 |

q. faciir faamur @aieT SMUREE (Basis of Preparation):
Tq FFIATH! faxira fqeres Ufdqetia® Hed dFaron (Historical Cost Convention) ¥ S@@Tdeh! MY=zal (Going
Concern) [ ATIRHAT T FTTHT @ HIAT [CUE® d9T Il TRTHAT aTeeh ATl (Accrual) STERHAT
AGTE T ATHTTAT GIHT0 fqgT=ae® (Generally Accepted Accounting Principles) THT T, 0% dmHT
faHTEer, 0%, FEAr UF, 053 9T AAT ATATAR faxira faazor awa=dr it stuaar & sraamen
TR T FHAATS LATTAT TG TR TRTHT 7 |

). fer wwufa wersw fifa (Fixed Assets Policy):
fer Tfaes UfqeTiae Hed SATaRUTE ATIRAT ARTT HedHT ETHHE T S@IEUH G | ¥ 9T Tl @t
TRTHT @< TAT FTAAT @eells AT HedH TSR0 RS |

3. gwegl sifd (Depreciation Policy):
= AT AT afquet feR Frafdesdl a8 FE AT UA, 04s 3RT Mafrd &% q97 akal AR "eal qed
JUTAT (Diminishing Balance Method) &1 HATARATETE FE TRTH B, S[A AITd A@IATT AqFT G |

8. Usligpa MY Qruftiee Wit q@rss ifd (Non-capitalized Assets):

FEIA i THE & 4,000 A FeF U7 AHNEE (T & @ia 9ud auwr @+ ael fA4fq fagusr g |

Y. SR AawT Hifd (Income Tax Policy):

AT B
TG FAIA ATTRT U, 045 TIT TALIATT ATTHT TAHT AURT SR ATTAHT & ATABT FGLdT TH 3 |
qamy ol faaorar Jeor@ TRUST FR, T A@TIRIEI TAT AT AT BIATAAATS (LT TR HT qwaT

FRF ET G |

T HY

farirr faaRor s amert qedta 9T T T TAT FH ATIR A< Tk 78 (9o g demdl d=1% (Temporary
Difference) T HRUIl A=A [T &9 %< FMAcE AT FEATAH! T AT FEAA T HIehl oA@Ige TTH
T | TTHHY qrITd [oiaT AT &A1 SRTERE! THH WA FR TS AMEHS; |

§. T dETsa St (Investment Policy):

(F) TYRBRT AU/ FHUTTAAT ANTAT A@TEA sAifer
T FrAfaer g faaee geeredr AERTer aHTSH IRl s=aas 97 HOITAT TRUR A HIars dfed
A1 U Hed WA S[A Al G HIEl HeAHT J@rgd T Al [eua J |
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wQ.

Q.

8.

(@) o/ facl e Aedt frdomr T qarse i
Frar afafaer fadr faawer awedr (et awifaw S qor i gearsr qedt fHamT T @S
AT THAAT T@EUH G |

() ufses fafiee FvwieT JaRATEIET J@TEa dfa
qfeer fafAee AT AR AMAE G HedHl AMEUH B | TR AeAH=T ao Al FH TUAT FIF
FH HAATs FaLT @ (Provision for Investment Loss) @@TsH TRUH |

(1) ufewa fafhes HFudicl FRT IRSBT FHUTUAZEAT AT A@TFA dAMfer
afecter fAfide FFIArel ST RN HOTT ANRE] AHIATs Afbd AAAT @3 TRUH 3 |

¥eEl Tedg AR difd (Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Policy):

fareft wgTaT TET T T AMfcasT dfeds HISaTas! J@rse quTdl HETHT aui=del o @i¥E 3% J9R TRTH
T | faeefl FamT AU FREARATS dife Hiae! bHaa Tware 1R 791 d@rsT TReH g | foaq fa a7 9o
YR AT FTIH Teeh! [ATHT IXERT ATIRHAT FIHIA I IHHATS [ATHIHT ATHRT a7 AT G g@ray
T eraerra TTR |

dHIeE SR a@Tsa atta (Premium Income Policy):
ATHTSTeF ATFRTAT STAT UA T ATHT AT [HaeT aHiieTd A7 JTieh] ATaRAT J@rsd TRUH & | Ao I
qUHT ¥E MRS a9 Ik ATHT Tedbdlls Aile ATMIE a6 q@TgT T ST 9eh ATRMETE Teed TRUH B |

ST FHR T AT9d YT g Ao ATRETAT JIEHTal (Accrual) ATERAT o@Tsd TRUH 3 |
AT SV TGt A@Ts sifd (Reinsurance Commission Income Policy):

qETHT HATFATS Accrual Basis AT STRRTHI ar@Tee T+ Afd fgua®r & | qA1%T HHTH (Profit Commission)
greaTr drar afataer fa<dr faawor aweed fAdfrer auifaw arafaa qadveare fafed a@da g v gfg

s T Afa w@Er @)

SN AGTSA T SISWIS i (Other Income and Appropriation Policy):

FFIATA AT YT T AT qAT A= ATRRTATATS, ATAT ATeeh, TEHTAT (Accrual) ATIRHAT S@rsH el drAT
afafaer fa<im faazor aFaedT Efrer aHIieA &0 AT AT6T e fard Jdqr 0 a7 GaEs 9r
HTAR ATSHIE TRTH F |

HWT WSy #ifd (Loans& Advances Policy):
FEIATA FYANT b FoTATS B[l FidT THHAT TS 9 AT TGl & | T A1.9. [009,/095 HT HFIATA
fAoe a1 ISrST I & T Hll EHl B |

HEATA G AfShiE aifd (Management Expenses Appropriation Policy):

AT afafaedr TeTHHr ATIRAT AT @l 7U fqerd T AThRT AT feqranr @< 3@rs aidl AT
T AT AR TAE AR HT ATTHAT BT el T §F AT IhHATS Ad AT AR ARHTAT
JCUE ST AR STHTT o] ATIHT STHT SATTIE! AT 7 feqradr argwhis T4 AIfd SAaasa= TRTHT
g |

AT qTdr TRt @9 q@rsa #id (Claim Expenses Policy):
FEIAT ATHT ST TRTAIRIES @3 T&T STATAE aHITSTH ThTl TI aTediae TaREH ¥ AT qRIHel

TAT AT @ FHT T @I T A1 [8UH B |

T T A giiica SawT dETEd A

(@) TSI IO T SHHEAT TATCHT SAT ITET AT IM0ca AT AQTF ALATITR] ATHAH] ATITTHT
@I T AT EH B |

(@) THTAT {7 STl ATl THHB! AT STAT (FAATEAT, 0%, &l oA QUE), T Q9% TTTerae T e
T @3 T Aia [aguer g |
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gq ARl afewig wifa (Net Profit Appropriation Policy) :

AT ATl R0% R HI TRT L) q9T SrAT ATATAERT faira faarer awaedT (AaRreres sraear aHitsaH =
ST SRTAR UG g7 ATRTET L0 FIAATHT &7 ATSH ThH STHTHITHT AT AT TEHT &, I ITh THAATS
TIET SYTHT AT 2 FAaene ATl Toael RS ATER AT Yid [hIaabl SIHThTHT SShigTT Hiid T&h
B | g7 afafaer 09 F=G & Td RN TWE GRTT F. o FTAR faxir faarorr qrRT Jeee feama et
ATSHICH AT IJTAST THHF! ATRIHT (0 TFTAAA & THH FENaard SRIST ATIq Faedl T A faguat g |

FHART I, fagr qur s glaur ama srawn @ifd (Employees Retirement Benefits Policy):
FFIAR] FHAT ATAEEA AR FHAT SIS, Herdam, a1 qar o= qfagrarda @ T [d dguer
EA

(F) SUGH :
FFIATH] FHATIA FaT THT T qUH ATIRHT IJTET @bl HAaLdT T AT GHATES A TI5S
et 3Rg ATAINTF FREATHTAT 533 AqAR! fE@maet TSra" HawT (HerguH ¥ FFaier FH=mr fafqamesr

AT FHITH FHATA YT T THH ANE AT BH Aeqia T JIETT HITHT AT T Al

fersuerr 5 |
(@) FAABI :

FHFIAIH] HHAT [ATAH ATAR HFIAC FoAPIT ARTEAR] SAGEIT T FHARH ATEIRAT TAHT 40 FeTaed
AT TR AT G @ AGl H AREATH] THH FHAT F=ARIT A FHHAT @IArr fAfq 2000
IT WA FERHT ST TRTH g 99 Afq R08s Femasfe grEifas qRer #oEr ST aiReE @ 0

@ fagr Qe e
FEIAR FHAN [AMIH AR TN FHARIGEH] Alad O3 [6a1 aradew! IHHH! Taedl T Ald [auaHr
o |

VGG STHTHT et Hifd (Provision for Doubtful Debts Policy):
STFTEIE ATATHIRT FATNT SHEATATIAS (LRI T ATHT ATAR FGLdT T Al el G |

USG9 q@TEe ditd (Write Off Policy):

TERN 90 AT HOTAEE GEHT TR TUH HTTTHATs STh a9d qa7 HOTAEES TRl qafd AR
FETAATAE FTHT @ AT qAT AT ATI@H THI @ AET a9AT F @ el A ferguet 3 |

T FfEe:

AT, ATRT AT feqre, 9 277 fedra aaad faxde fqaroars v ¥ 9o T F9rs T 9= a@r
Aifqes:

(&) TONHAIEIE ARG A@TE et

FATHETE YT &+ ATFRTAT GIE9TEl (Accrual) T QTSI ATRTAT ATE GTIAh! SATIRHT S@rge T Al &bl
3

(@) SEATET FEH SOIET AETE oM
FFIATS AT (AT, 0%, TAT &TAT UH, 0%, THINAH AHATK SIT@H SHIST 9T G& ATHT edbebl
Yo gfqerd THEH AT T+ Afd TH G T AT TWHT THHAATS qigedd] ATTIE TUAT AT TATSH
1T e B | ATHGE ATHIH FHHT ATLIT ThT IHHATS A1 a9 Tregebl ATTH TUAT AT STATSA (AT
EH G |

(1) TR e @ @ A
qAETHT 9o @eals YIEHTET (Accrual ) ATETRHAT T@rgd T AIid el & |

(eT) TN apfiehuT sfifer :
FTHATAR [GTHT FTIH Tl AEED ATTH TR (ATT T a9 TwaT del TUH AeEars arabrerT

RTFTRT TGHT T AT 2T AT kel ATHIATS AT AR TTHT S@TIT A1a [Tl T |

3y 3l arffe wfedes : 19



AR ScAR A ddudll forfdies

ST &
facirr faaruterasr graferm dar st frmufige

q. gwRiTfaa qTicage

) FHFIAH] BTATFH FTHT AT ThTAT & alebl AT AHTHT |

1) BTATFR FFIAT F G FfTagdr (Underwriting Commitments) TTXeRT S |

T) FEOATHT A9 AT A | FHA G ATHICRG AT TRl AT dTHE SI¥ HASTAT T G |

%) FEIHS ATRAT THATE (SR AT TATTH |

3) a9 I
I FFATA TN ATHT aT4T (HERor SR Fa Fewhl & a1 &1 aTqd SifHdese SrHT AAtd qa1 TARTaad SaTerdAl
HET 3R TRE ¥ Grare fasar g9 a9 Faifad facd T . 9,09,90,000 TEd IfEUH @ |

. VTR dfe! gTdl arud qTfica HeTid g7 Sawras TRehT ATUREE:
RN AT AT A9 TAcad] HeaT$d [aad aus! FqHd T AHATET TRUH WA ATAR TRUH | SH
AT R0%% &1 (999 QU(H) ® Sqaedl ATeT Fi=d TS TR ATHAIAT SAATHT FFIATR] BT 194% o
g AT THH (AT AT9d AT TS G |

3. dAm®T TulaaT sTuaT Hifiaar e faages:

o ~

o~ N o o ~
P AT GRS bl e Hl eleldHH agj"f [FaTee ™ THUSRT |

8. ull, woret T fer grafaer anfir afvger uftegar:
FHIATST FAT, T JAT Fear TPt AT B Fiqagar TH S |

Y. TR Grafed qEEeT aivg fasft SRhmaEesT ae:

o) @ie TRUPT TETadr @M Jie TS G |

ofT) FEAHTRT & Gt fershT TR ST oTed & b B |
§. TW TEST AfvTRT Tt qur fasht/ frat fager et faasu:

(@) T qot WL ARTHT FAT BT fqa”or -

FE. | I G THH
§ | U TRERH AT TAATA -
R | anforear Sepept wedT fadm ¥5,3Y4,00,000

3 | faeprar Sepept HedT fdT 990,00,000

¥ | foT TR Hedl fae 3,%,00,000

W | aforss Sepepr smors ¥, 43,000

% | SHEIET ST AT R0,¥9R% q¥%

V] mﬂﬂﬁ ThUg \SK,OO’OOO
AT 9,9Y,0Z,0Z,98¢

93R : 2y 3 aiffe ufiaes



(@) T@ ast W ARgHT T fmarer faaor

.. | Tt & LCL
q | U WRERRT AlTT TR -
R | aforear Seperr HedT fAdd 34,%3,00,000
3 | T s Hedr e ¥,23,40,000
¥ | fad FFreR "l MaT %3,00,000
y | aforsa SemeRr HoraH 3,53,09,000
% | SIS STARHT A &R,3¥,0% 53R
¢ | IS g 45,299%¥0

STFET 9,9C,98,98, 9%

v. S Aer RuE graeuAT grfua 3@/ fadhia goumer g afgaer e few et @@n

TSy Sk, e e qor ol Fearesar Ted 9 Greard T Faraa T e Miader T gEied qeesde
faaeor HisaTq FHAT TF YT 9E FEl GEATEEH GHAT I & HHAT G |

. W 3 wtHEG o fom e e wremumT grfad dme T wdiaeer gre afider e fram awmd
G

T FHATA G 9T TAAAGEEET qU] AT faiad I fearaesr THIT Il Aedbh! T Hel WA AHEBEED
FHIT I YT g HHAT EH G |

. dHEA IRHT T Yatad ST O, e @ur fwmr affaae difee satew w8 aRge

ATHe TR AAIHE AN T AHRB! THAT I HRITEHT AT AEHHAT STHT AIATTRT AT (TR ATAR
TS RHTATE ST FaebTa HOTTS IUAS THUHT AARATHT Ik &TTHT HH TEhT AT THHATS AT Fehebl Fedl
ferameraT AR AT AlRT AU FIET THTH AT THH AT Tehewebl AT AT MXTH G |

0. fAHHT T aT FATABIT Trafetd ATTH a7 YEARNT HYHT BRI

I FAA FAAF qIT GATARIT GrIfaa =afch a1 AT T FFAH] GEI(THeEare SIA7 MU g7 |

qq. A ST FeufoaT FReruTT fagst ot fudr, wd @ sifac:

FTIHIST BT ATRHAT GEITIehT GRETITHT Bl 0T feAUehr G |

9Q. A HY TCHT WHTUTUS WG JIRebT 31T, TAT caecl SIehT WATUTUA WTTd & afeh! 3md. ¥ §F avael foamuteat @iy srfireait

T, TEHT HY ARAET SATST AU Tl URGT ¥ AW STAAT HTATAT HUHT IHH:

(F) FFIATT T Y fqawor fqafaq sqaT afadr T4 ST G | FFIATRT AT, R0%% /0% FI ATAHT FAT FIETAT
FAATATE TAIRT T F. 9,322,500 99 & I FAH T A IR (o Aqvheblel TSI TATTATHAH
AT Aredfes TSted faqrTAT fAaET 9 TIET @ | 99 #T Qfucadrs gWiiad aifacawr T@susl @ |

(@) FFIAIHT A9, J0\9R/093 F ATTF ST FIETAT HATAIATE (AT 3099,/09/33 AT IR T &, 9 98 ,54,383
99 FX IMAcE FEAH THA Al IIX o AG¥heble TMHBT TARTATRAH] AT AT IT91ed [FANTHT (HaaT
T9T TV Fi | AT HT MACAATS GATT SMTaAT T@IZUHT F |

93. firat R@T fiwr Jrewar afvAToT ¥ FROT:

T AF. A FFATA & 2,309%,340.50 HHT 9ok (A RS Tl fhar W &

HIRUTEE:

(%) fafHder SARIgHT STHT3 THH TeTSUH |
(@) FERT AT RN & TTH |

(1) JIqaaT TF &7 TTH |

(o) ATAT@HT g8+ TRUH SAT@H TareTah

Yy & arffe ufte : 933



8.
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20.

YRS g Al GeieT faawor

FHAS I ARHRATE SR TAATT @REAT HATHTAT ] [THTH Aqerad T el AEH! |

TehT GSlAedr I WTRTet UG (Paid in advance) HTRTHT UGl &0 d(@T (Call in arrears) ¥ W ATYTT A%

e fosam dorfuasTt Jrawer faasorn:

- F<hT IS AR AR 9T (Paid in advance) STaR8%& THTH! |
- STTRTAT 9T g9 aiebl (Call in arrears) 9178 THUH |

- TR RS aX I AR AARTH TaREE THTHT |

fost dice Tvufa™T I aEewR T a9 et G= (Amortization) AfaUST YHAST faemoT:
fersT 2T @wafadT 79 99 @9 (Amortization) “RTHT THH B |

FEHTAT HTHT AT qTRRET FRERST faaruT:

JTEAATT TATMEeRT HIRTATT THUEH |

TftreaT aniEEwor SRl AR qUT SeEwd! HETgs faauT |

afereett anfie FUET FEIId 97T @ F. §,039,39 WH T |

I bY (Deferred Tax):

T F T T A TUAT AAE 39, 095 Bl (qaR0 [FHFATTAR el &

faa=or a9 asf I aef
T FX FEata/ ()

fesrz vt (9,090,5R%)|  (4,¥I¥HR)
ferar aroer s R,293,40% 5,5%,30
FRHTHT AT Sqa=aT ¥, 9¥% 3% ¥, ¥%%,35%
AT AR Sqaen %,%99,99R 8q0%,39%
ERIGIRIRIE DR - -
EAC 33,540,583 |  R0,00¥90¥
T &Y et/ (gTireE) 80,503,522 38,099,980

faRTaaT IR ATId SHATATATS H FATSIAHR! AT @ AT TRATCHIAT T A9, 3@ aTedids ITETT qhTars
AT FR JATTAR! AT @ &TAT T A aEATIA ATATCH] §aT SURTT ATIdAH] HALAT THAT AT G T T

FrafaeTs Td auaTe I qERO JAT ATHEHTH TRTEH G |

Frafotld URTEEIdT SRR (Related Parties Transactions)

TTIAAT TEHT THE ATHEE:

qAE, FATAF TAT THE FAFN ATIRdATs AALATIAHR THE@ AThHP! TTHT [ASUH B | Al (670 TR Tae

EX

F. 1 AHEHS AAET

AT ATHAT TN

A7 fagrd wfor ASTISRT
AT AT AR, UEEH
AT TS A IR
AT TSR AT S

AT S

AT =T &

i @ 4 o944

93 : 2y ot a